LAKES REGION PLANNING COMMISSION

103 Main Street, Suite #3
Meredith, NH 03253

Tel 603.279.8171
www.lakesrpc.org

LRPC COMMISSIONER’S MEETING
Monday, September 25, 2023
6:00 PM

Tilton Police Department | Community Room
45 Sanborn Road | Tilton, NH

AGENDA

Call to Order
a. Establish Quorum
b. Commissioner Appointment/Changes Announcement

Approve Draft Minutes of June 26, 2023 Attachment 1

Presentation
InvestNH Update — Andrew Dorsett, BEA

Old Business
a. RHNA Adoption Discussion Attachment 2
b. Proposed By-Law Revisions Attachment 3

New Business

FY24 Budget Proposal Approval Attachment 4
b. FY25 Municipal Membership & HHW Appropriations Attachment 5
c. FY24 Proposed Meeting Calendar Attachment 6
d. CEDS and EDA District Process Attachment 7

Regional Updates

Commissioner Roundtable
Share noteworthy news and happenings from your communities.

Adjourn

NEXT MEETING: October 23, 2023

The Lakes Region Planning Commission reserves the right to hold a non-public session whether noted on the Agenda or not. Notice of a non-
public session on an agenda is for planning purposes only. The citations to the Right-to-Know Law are provisional and may be revised as
circumstances required. The LRPC complies with the ADA regulations. Please contact the LRPC office if you need special assistance in order to
attend this meeting.

All meeting dates and times are subject to change.




Htachment /



LAKES REGION PLANNING COMMISSION

103 Main Street, Suite #3
Meredith, NH 03253

Tel 603.279.8171
www.lakesrpc.org

LRPC Commissioner Meeting
Location: Church Landing | Meredith
Minutes of June 26, 2023

Commissioners Present Commissioners Absent

Alexandria: Gary Tomlinson Alexandria: George Tuthill
Ashland: Mardean Badger Bridgewater: Ken Weidman
Barnstead: David Kerr Bristol: Bill Dowey
Center Harbor: Mark Hildebrand Danbury: John Taylor
Freedom: Mark McConkey Mark Zaccaria
Gilford: John Ayer Freedom: Jean Marshall
Laconia: Dean Anson, II Hebron: Ivan Quinchia
Meredith: Stephanie Maltais Holderness: Robert Snelling
Moultonborough: Cristina Ashjian Laconia: Stacy Soucy
New Hampton: David Katz Wes Anderson

Andy Anderson Moultonborough: Celeste Burns
Northfield: Wayne Crowley Plymouth: Zachary Tirrell

Doug Read Sandwich: Bonnie Osler (virtual)
Plymouth: Bill Bolton David Rabinowitz

John Christ Tilton: Jane Alden
Sanbornton: Robert Lambert Jeanie Forrester
Tamworth: Pat Farley

Lianne Prentice

Wyatt Berrier
Wolfeboro: Roger Murray, 111

Tavis Austin

LRPC Staff: Executive Director Jeff Hayes, Finance Administrator Carl Carder, Administrative Assistant Linda
Waldron, Regional Planner David Jeffers, Solid Waste Planner Matthew Rose, Sr. Transportation Planner Sean
Chamberlin, Land Use Planner Christine Marion, Assistant Planner Ryan Paterson, and Grants Administrator
Tracey Secula.

1. Call to Order
The meeting was called to order at approximately 5:15 PM by Chair Ayer. A quorum was established.

2. Recognitions
Chair Ayer began by first recognizing the Executive Board members, followed by the Commissioners who were
present, and LRPC staff. Chair Ayer went on to acknowledge several federal and state legislators who were
attending (Robert Graham representing Senator Maggie Hassan, Molly Smith representing Congresswoman
Ann Kuster, and State Representatives Bill Bolton, Joseph Kenney, and Mark McConkey). Mr. Graham and
Ms. Smith both read letters from their respective legislators. Senator Jeanne Shaheen was unable to attend nor
send a representative on her behalf, but she did provide a letter which was read by Chair Ayer.

Page 1 of 2
Minutes of June 26, 2023 Commission Meeting



Approval of Minutes

A motion was made by Vice Chair Katz to approve draft minutes from the May 22, 2023 Commissioner meeting
as presented. This was seconded by Gary Tomlinson. A voice vote was taken in which all members present
were in favor; none opposed. Motion passed.

Old Business
None.

New Business

Proposed By-Law Amendments. Executive Director Hayes advised that we need to clarify that nominees for
the election of Officers (annually) and Executive Board members (biennially) shall stem from the entire pool
of Commissioners. Additionally, we are contemplating electing alternates to the Executive Board to address
quorum issues. These matters will be further addressed at our September meetings.

Election of Officers

Secretary Pat Farley took the podium to announce the election of officers. By unanimous vote, Secretary Farley
advised that the current (and slated) officers will remain in their positions for another year — John Ayer, Chair;
Dave Katz, Vice Chair; Pat Farley, Secretary; and David Kerr, Treasurer.

Adjournment
Chair Ayer returned and adjourned the meeting.

Respectfully Submitted,

Linda Waldron
Administrative Assistant

Page 2 of 2

Minutes of June 26, 2023 Commission Meeting



Biography

Andrew Dorsett
BEA H ousing Fimmance Director



LRPC Commissioner Meeting
September 25, 2023

PRESENTER

Department of Business and Economic Affairs

Andrew Dorsett is the Housing Finance Director for the New Hampshire
Department of Business and Economic Affairs (BEA). He is spearheading
InvestNH, BEA’s ambitious $100 million program which will bring much
needed relief to the affordable housing market across the state and promote
efficiency in local planning and zoning to create a regulatory environment that
encourages the construction of housing affordable to New Hampshire’s
growing workforce.

Andrew has worked in municipal, county, and state government for over a

decade as a town administrator and town manager, a county administrator, and
now as a director for BEA. He has expertise in navigating state and local regulations, budget management,
policy development, and program coordination. He has worked with state and federal grants both as a
representative of recipient communities and as a leader in grant program design and implementation.
Throughout his career, Andrew has facilitated partnerships and cooperation between the public and private
sectors and local, state, and federal governments to advance progress and prosperity for the citizens of the
Granite State.

Andrew is proud to be bringing his expertise to BEA and the InvestNH program and looks forward to
discussing the exciting opportunities available to New Hampshire’s municipalities through InvestNH.



Htachment 2



2023
Lakes Region

Housing Needs Assessment

Written by:

Lakes Region Planning Commission
103 Main Street, Suite 3
Meredith, NH 03253
Phone: (603) 279-8171
www.lakesrpc.org




(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Lakes Region Planning Commission

FY23 COMMISSIONERS
(07/01/22 to 06/03/23)
Alexandria Bridgewater Franklin Hill New Hampton Sandwich
Chet Caron, A/t Ken Weidman TBD TBD David E. Katz Bonnie Osler
David Rabinowitz
Andover Bristol Freedom Holderness Northfield Tamworth
Donna Crisp Duclos ~ William Dowey Jean Marshall Robert Snelling Wayne Crowley Patricia Farley
Mark McConkey Doug Read Kelly Goodson
Wyatt Berrier, A/

Ashland Center Harbor  Gilford Laconia Ossipee Tilton
Mardean Badger Mark Hildebrand ~ John Ayer Dean Anson, IT TBD Jane Alden

Stacy Soucy Jeanie Forrester, A/

Wes Anderson
Barnstead Danbury Gilmanton Meredith Plymouth Tuftonboro
David Kerr John Taylor TBD Stephanie Maltais William Bolton Stephen Wingate

Mark Zaccaria Zachary Tirrell

Belmont Effingham Hebron Moultonborough  Sanbornton Wolfeboro
TBD Mark Hempton Ivan Quinchia Cristina Ashjian Robert Lambert Roger F. Murray, 111

Celeste Burns

FY23 STAFF

Jeffrey R. Hayes Carl Carder David Jeffers Sean Chamberlin
Executive Director Finance Administrator Regional Planner Sr. Transportation Planner
Matthew Rose Christine Mation Tracey Secula Linda Waldron
Solid Waste Planner Land Use Planner Grants Administrator Administrative Assistant

Allen Constant
Transportation Technician

Ryan Paterson
Transportation & GILS Intern

1|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

l. ACKNOWIEAGMENTS. ...eeiiiiiiiiee e st e s e e e e saaae e e s sabeeeeesaaeeeas 5
Il. EXECUTIVE SUMIMIAIY ..ottt bbbttt bsbsbassesbsbsbssssssssssssnsnsnsnsnsnssnnnas 6
P N {1 AN €] (o I T YA o B =T o 4 PSP 7
V. INEFOAUCTION e e s et e e e st e e e sabe e e e s enbaeeeesanneeeesnnees 10
F AN o o T=Tot @AY= T oY 1T PPN 10
B. Purpose of the Regional Housing Needs AsSeSSMENt ........cccccvveeereiieeeeecieeeeeecieee e 11
C. Overview of Prior Lakes Region RHNAS .........cccuviiiiiiiiee et e e evee e e e enene e 11
D. What NH Laws are Driving Changes in the LRHNA Focusing on Affordability?............. 12
E. Description of the Lakes REZION ......ccccuviiiiiiiiiiiiciiie et e 13
V.  Analysis of Historical/Existing Conditions & Trends .........cccueevveeieeeiieecieccieesee e 18
A. Demographic / SOCIOECONOMIC TIENAS .....ccuvieieeiiiecreeciie ettt eree e eenes 18
1. Population is growing, but at a slower rate than in the previous decade. ............. 18
2. The number of people living in group quarters has remained fairly constant........ 20
3. The Lakes Region is becoming somewhat more racially and ethnically diverse..... 21
4. Lakes Region population iS @giNg. .....cccceeeieiiieiiiiiee et 22
5. Growing percentage of 1- and 2-person (smaller) households...........ccceeeurveeenn.... 25
6. No significant change in family/non-family households in the Lakes Region.......... 26

7. The Lakes Region labor force has been fairly consistent over the past two
[0 [Tk Lo [T OO PRSPPI 27

8. The number of jobs in the Lakes Region has grown by about 10% in the past

[0 [Tk To [T PRSPPI 29

9. There are a number of large employers in Lakes Region, Laconia is central
10 the region’s WOIK fOrCE. .....uuiiiiiiii i e 31
10. Communities with more top employers generally have lower commute times..... 33
11. School enrollment has been steadily declining in the Lakes Region since 2013..... 33
B. Communities of Interest (COI) - Populations That May Have Housing Challenges....... 33
1. Seniors: population ages 65 years and over are inCreasing. .....cccccccveevvvveveeeeereennns 33
2. Grandparents taking care of grandchildren........cccccvvvveeiiiiiiiiiiinieeeee e, 34
3. Racial/Ethnic Minorities have INCreaSEU. ......ooveu oo 35
4. More than one third of households are led by single parents. ......ccccccceveeeeeinnnneen. 36

2|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Y 7= T Lo (1] PSPPSR 37
6. More than 2,000 Lakes Region households without a vehicle.......cccccccoeecuvrneene..n. 39
7. Nearly half the region’s renters are low-income households. ..........ccccceeevrreennene. 39
8. The Lakes Region has a high proportion of persons with disabilities...................... 41
9. Limited English profiCiency. ......cooocuiiie e 41
10. Many Veterans in the Lakes REGION.......ceuviviie it ee e 41
8 I o T d o IS0 g Yo =T ot < PSP 42
12. Homeless POPUIGLIONS. .oooieviiiiiiiie e s e e s 42
13. People in group quarters who return home (i.e., formerly incarcerated

populations, college graduates returning home). .......cccceeeeeiiieececiiee e, 42
14. Persons with substance abuse disorder, mental illness. ........ccccuveveveeveereeveeeeeenneennnn, 42
15, Families that FeNT. ..o et 43

C. Housing Unit Trends and CharacteriStiCS......uiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e ee e eecrrrree e e e e e 43

1. Number of housing units — Occupied/Vacant/Seasonal.........c.ccccceceeeiireeiiiieeecnenn, 43
2. The population of the Lakes Region is growing faster than the total number of

Lo TSy [gF =W &SRS 44

Lakes Region has a high percentage of vacant (seasonal) housing units. ............... 45
4. The most common housing type in the Lakes Region is single-family

NOUSING (SFH). eeeeiieeeitie e e e e e e e s e e e e e e aaa e e e ennnaeeas 46
5. Bedrooms per housing unit rose slightly. .....ccccceeveiiiiiieeeiii e, 47
6. Density Of NOUSING UNILS. ..ooieiiiiiieiee et e e e rere e e 47

7. Number of units authorized by building permit — single family, multifamily,
and manufactured NOUSING. .......c.uviiiiieeic e e 48

8. Age of housing stock — much of the region’s housing built in 1970s, -80s,

im0, i 49
9. Short-term rentals — many rentals in the Lakes Region. ........ccccovvvvveeiiiiccciiiennnnnn. 50
D. Distribution of Workforce and Affordable HOUSING.........ccccuviiiiieeiii i, 50
E. Housing Market, Cost and Affordability .........ccccevvieieiiiiieiiiireeee e 52
1. Median household income rose in the Lakes Region, but not the same for all
ROUSEROIAS. ...ttt 52
2. Mortgage applicants are older in the Lakes ReioN. ......ceceevvvevccrnreeeieeeieiccnireeeeneen. 53
3. Housing market — sales prices have doubled in the last twenty years, rent
CONTINUES L0 MIS@. 1ottt e e e e s e e e e e s e s nnn e 54
4. Measures of housing affordability — more renters are overburdened. .................. 58

3|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

VI.  Analysis of Future Conditions & TrenNds.......coecuieeiiriiiiiiiiiieee et e e saaeee s 61
A. Conditions Likely to Impact Future Housing Supply, Housing Affordability, Cost of

DeVeloping NEW HOUSING ....ciiiiiiiieiiiiie et ertte et e st e e s e e s s saaae e s s sarae e e snnnaeee s 61

1. Housing market and population projections. .........ccccceeveeeccciiieeeee e 61

2. 0NN it 62

3. Land availability and value. .........ooeeeerioeee e 62

4. CONSEIUCLION COSTES. .uviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 63

5. Interest rates & iNflation........c.cooiiiiiiiiiii e 63

6. Land Use Regulations affecting SUPPIY. ccvueeiiiiieiiiiiiiecie e 64

B. HOUSING NEEAS PrOJECLIONS ...eiiiiiiiiei ittt e e s s aa e e e e sbae e e s s 64

C. Fair Share DistribULION .......coiiiiiiiie e e 66

VIl. Affordable and Equitable Housing Choice Opportunities and Barriers..........ccccccvveeeecnnnenn. 70

A. Land Use Regulations, Policies, and Other Controls.........ccccvvveeveeiiiicccciiieee e, 70

B. Employment OpportunitiesS/CoNSTraints ........cccueeeiiieiiiieeeiee e e e 72

C. Physical Infrastructure and SEIVICES .......uuiieiiiiiie et e aae e 74

D. Affordable and Fair HOUSING .....cc.uviiiiiiiiie et e 77

VIIl. Housing Toolbox: Resources for Meeting Local Housing Needs ..........cccoeevveeeiviiieeeccnnenn. 80

IX.  CONCIUSION .ttt ettt et e e bt e e st e e st e e e bt e e sabeeesabeesnneesneeas 82

LIST OF APPENDICES ...ttt sttt st e sn e e me e e e sme e sneenne e 84

Appendix A — Fair SNare ANalYSiS .....oci i e e e e e s e crrere e e e e e e e e s narreeeeeaaeseannns 85

Appendix B — QUantitative Data .......ccccviiiiiiee e e e e e e e eaans 94

Population and Projections (detailed) .......c..ooeeeiiee e 94

People Per Household, Lakes Region COMMUNITIES ......ceeveeeeeiiciirieeeeeeeeiecrreeeee e e e 95

Lakes Region Population by Race/EthNiCity.....cccueeeeueeiiiriiiciiiceee et 96

Vacant Housing Types, Including Seasonal by Community ......ccccveeeeeeeiieiiiiieeeeeeee e, 97

INCOME RESTIICEEA HOUSING .. .uvvriiiieiieeieiiiteee ettt e e e e e e e e e e e esnbrareeeeeeeessnnnraees 98

Water & Sewer Infrastructure in the Lakes RegioNn .......coccuvviiiieiii e, 102

Appendix C — Existing Housing-Focused Entities/Services in the Region ..........cccceeeevveeeeveeenneen. 104

KEY SOUICE DOCUMENTS ...ttt e et s s e e e e e e e et e s e s e e eeaaatbbaaseeeeeeaenessaans 105

4|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Acknowledgments

NH Office of Planning and Development — grant management, stakeholder coordination, hiring and management of consultants
RLS Demographics, Inc. — consultant hired by NHODP to model population projections

Root Policy Research — consultant hired by NHODP to model housing affordability and Fair Share

NH Housing and Finance Authority — stakeholder providing data on housing and income from around the state

Lakes Region Community Developers — regional stakeholder that develops and manages affordable housing projects

All who responded to surveys, interviews, and group discussions.

NH Association of Regional Planning Commissions — provided a platform for hosting some project materials

Much of the data presented in this document is from the US Census. Where possible, data from the 2020 (and prior for
comparison) decennial census was used and is indicated as the source by “US Census Bureau, 2020”. If not available through
the decennial census, estimates from the American Community Survey was used and is indicated as the source by “US Census

Bureau ACS, 2020”. Other data sources are indicated as notated.

Funding for this came through a grant from the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) administered by the New Hampshire Office
of Planning and Development (NHOPD).

Local planners who provided input regarding recent activity in their community.

5|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Executive Summary

The 2023 Lakes Region Housing Needs Assessment (LRHNA) prepared by the Lakes Region Planning Commission provides data
and analysis on current and future housing needs in conformance with NH RSA 36. This assessment inventories current housing
needs, includes analysis of historical trends and existing conditions, and makes projections of future housing needs. The
information we present is intended to inform the public of the region’s housing conditions and assist municipalities in planning
a balanced housing stock. For the first time, the 2023 LRHNA includes an analysis of affordable housing needs in the region and
uses a formula provided by the NHOPD to calculate each municipality’s “fair share” of the region’s affordable housing needs
over the next 20 years.

Housing trends in the Lakes Region are very similar to trends experienced by the rest of the state and much of New England
over the last decade. Throughout New England, population has increased faster than the number of housing units driving up
prices while wages have not kept pace. In the Lakes Region, we have another unique problem resulting from the second
vacation home market. This additional demand for housing in the region increases land and building prices and reduces the
percentage of the housing stock available for year-round and nonseasonal use.

Our 2023 LRHNA produced results which were corrected for seasonal housing impacts and are based on population and
employment projections. Affordable housing targets were developed specifically for each municipality based on regional “fair
share” calculations. The projected housing units needed, extend out 20 years to 2040, utilize a rental rate consistent with
current levels, are broken out not just by tenure (owner vs. renter), but also by affordability and municipality (see Appendix A
- Fair Share Analysis table for more detail). For the region as a whole, the revised production model estimates the need for an
additional 372 total units per year, including 158 affordable units. Our model further predicts the need for 117 affordable
ownership units and 41 rental units for the region annually for the next 20 years.

6|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

LRHNA Glossary of Terms

1. Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) — a residential living unit that can be within or attached to a single-family dwelling,
or a detached unit that provides independent living facilities for one or more persons, including provisions for
sleeping, eating, cooking, and sanitation on the same parcel of land as the principal dwelling unit it accompanies.
See New Hampshire Accessory Dwelling Unit statute (RSA 674:71-73).

2. Affordable Housing — housing, rental or owner-occupied, that costs no more than 30% of one's gross income.
Rental cost is defined as rent + utilities. Ownership cost is monthly principal, interest, taxes, and insurance.

3. Area Median Income (AMI) — the median income of all households in a given county or metropolitan region. If
you were to line up each household in the area from the poorest to the wealthiest, the household in the middle
would have the median household income. Housing programs and the state’s workforce housing law use AMI to
determine housing eligibility.

4. Household - A household consists of all the people who occupy a housing unit. There are two major categories of
households, "family" and "nonfamily".

5. Housing Unit - A housing unit is a house, an apartment, a mobile home, a group of rooms, or a single room that
is occupied (or if vacant, is intended for occupancy) as separate living quarters. Separate living quarters are those
in which the occupants live and eat separately from any other persons in the building, and which have direct
access from the outside of the building or through a common hall.

6. Housing Choice Vouchers (also known as Section 8) — a federal government program that assists very low-income
families, the elderly, and the disabled to afford decent, safe, and sanitary housing in the private market. It is a
form of subsidized affordable housing in which families who qualify may be provided with government funding to
pay a portion of their rent in standard, market-rate housing. Program eligibility and assistance is based upon
income and household size.

7|Page



10.

11.

12,

13.

14.

15.

(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) — a federal program that subsidizes the acquisition, construction, and
rehabilitation of affordable rental housing for low- and moderate-income tenants. Developers receive a tax credit
allocation from an agency such as NHHFA, and then sells the tax credits to a private equity company in exchange
for funding to build the property. LIHTC properties must have some or all of its units leased to tenants at rents
that are lower than market rent.

Market Rate Housing — housing that is available on the private market, not subsidized or limited to any specific
income level.

Mixed-Income Housing Development — development that includes housing for various income levels, including
housing that is targeted towards low- to moderate-income individuals and families.

Mixed-Use — any building that contains at least two different types of uses in it, such as ground floor commercial
space for stores, restaurants or other businesses, and apartments on the upper floors.

Multi-Family Housing — a building or structure designed to house different families in separate housing units,
usually rental property.

Short-Term Rental (STR) — a room, condo, apartment, cottage, or home made available to rent for any amount of
time, from one night to multiple weeks. It may be offered through a local agency or an on-line booking service.

Single-Family Housing — any detached dwelling unit meant for only one family to reside in. A single-family home
has no shared property but is built on its own parcel of land.

Subsidized Housing — housing where all or a portion of the occupants’ monthly housing cost is paid for directly by
the government, such as by Housing Choice Vouchers. The renters pay the portion of the rent that is determined
to be affordable to them based on their income.

Workforce Housing — a variety of housing types that are affordable (no more than 30% of gross income spent on
housing cost) suitable for households of working people with different needs and income levels. Due to their
income, this population is generally not eligible for any federal assistance programs.

8|Page



16.

(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

NH Workforce Housing Law - RSA 674:58-:61 defines workforce housing as housing that is affordable to a renter
earning up to 60% of the Area Median Income for a family of three paying no more than 30% of their income on
rent and utilities, or a homeowner earning up to 100% of the Area Median Income for a family of four paying no
more than 30% of their income on principal, interest, taxes and insurance.

9|Page



V.

(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Introduction

A. Project Overview

The Lakes Region Housing Needs Assessment is funded by the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) State and Local Fiscal Recovery
Fund Grant. The Lakes Region Planning Commission, along with the eight other regional planning commissions in the state and
the New Hampshire Office of Planning and Development coordinated their activities beginning in late 2021 throughout 2022
to produce a state-wide housing needs assessment as well as individual housing needs assessments for each region.

Regional planning commissions play an active role in aiding municipalities in planning for the future through technical
assistance on matters related to land use and housing as well as the related issues of transportation, energy, environment, and
the economy. The development of a regional housing needs assessment is a means for the planning commission to support
the activities of its member communities in fulfilling their role in allowing a balanced housing stock under state’s enabled
planning and zoning powers.

The underlying questions that this report attempts to explore are:

1. Isthere enough housing for the people working in the Lakes Region?

2. Is the housing available for the people working and living in the Lakes Region adequate and affordable for
them?

3. Do we expect that there will be adequate, appropriate, and affordable housing for the people working and
living here in the future?

4. If the answer to any of the questions above is “No”, then what steps can be taken to address that need?

The result is an estimated number of needed housing units, which is then attributed to each community in the region with the
anticipation that municipalities will use the information provided by the planning commission to set effective housing policy.
Specifically, each municipality should use their planning and zoning powers to allow for the development of a balance of
housing stock and the state has developed the NH Housing Appeals Board to adjudicate such matters.

The planning commission, in its role of providing technical assistance to the communities within its region, offers a variety of

housing tools based on the need and context of individual communities. The Housing Toolbox supplement (see VIII. Resources
for Meeting Local Housing Needs/Recommendations for more information) will provide insight into additional aspects of

10|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

housing which are within the control of state, region, and local government. As this section implies, these aspects of housing
constitute choices which can be made in the near term to influence housing outcomes both in the immediate future as well as
long term. The needs assessment identifies the types of housing issues communities may encounter in effort to assist their
decision-making.

B. Purpose of the Regional Housing Needs Assessment

New Hampshire Revised Statute Annotated (RSA) 36:47 (ll) requires that each Regional Planning Commission (RPC) compile an
assessment of the region’s housing needs by evaluating current, local, and regional data and projecting future needs of
residents of all income levels and ages. This assessment is to be updated every five years and made available to the region’s
municipalities so they can have a true appreciation of the demand while serving as a guiding tool in complying with RSA 674:2
(1), which refers to the housing section of a community’s local master plan.

In addition to evaluating current conditions and projecting current and future needs, the purpose of this document is to provide
actionable, realistic strategies for municipalities, businesses, developers, housing-focused entities, and other stakeholders to
help meet the projected needs of their communities.

Moreover, the RHNA is intended to help municipalities determine their compliance with New Hampshire’s Workforce Housing
Statute, RSA 674:58-61, which says that all municipalities must provide reasonable and realistic opportunities for the
development, as well as their “fair share”, of workforce housing inventory.

Housing has increasingly become a topic of conversation in New Hampshire, and specifically the Lakes Region. With increased
demand and multiple barriers and constraints to develop new housing all driving the cost up, housing has become a challenge
for many residing in or hoping to move to the Lakes Region. Housing supply impacts economic growth and the region’s ability
to attract and retain workers and young families that contribute to the economy and enhance the vibrancy of our communities.

C. Overview of Prior Lakes Region RHNAs

Over the past two decades, LRPC has developed several regional housing needs assessments. Some have been developed with
consultants, others without, but the results have been consistent. The greatest difference between current and past results is
that in the past we did not estimate the need for affordable units down to municipal levels.

11| Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Here is a quick overview of our past production model results:

In 2004, the LRHNA production model called for an annual average increase of 531 owner units and 218 renter units (~29%),
for a total of 749 new units needed annually in the Lakes Region.

The 2010 production model recommended that “a reasonable expectation for growth in the year-round housing supply” range
from 630 units to 880 units annually, with 115-175 (~19%) of these as rental units.

In 2015, our production model estimated new ownership and rental unit production should be between 302-374 for owned
units and 43-74 for rental units annually (~¥12-17%), for total of 345-448 housing units for the Lakes Region.

D. What NH Laws are Driving Changes in the LRHNA Focusing on Affordability?

NH RSA 672 IlI(E) states that “All citizens of the state benefit from a balanced supply of housing which is affordable to persons
and families of low and moderate income. Establishment of housing, which is decent, safe, sanitary, and affordable to low- and
moderate-income persons and families is in the best interests of each community and the state of New Hampshire and serves
a vital public need. Opportunity for development of such housing shall not be prohibited or unreasonably discouraged by use of
municipal planning and zoning powers or by unreasonable interpretation of such powers;”

Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU) — On June 1, 2017 the New Hampshire ADU law (RSA 674:71-74) went into effect, ensuring
that ADUs shall be permitted as a part of zoning that allows for single-family dwellings.

Housing Appeals Board — RSA 679 (July 1, 2020) established a Housing Appeals Board to hear and affirm, reverse, or modify
final decisions of municipal boards regarding questions of housing and housing development.

Residential Property Revitalization Zone — (RSA 79-E:4-b) law went into effect October 9, 2021. This allows municipalities to
establish tax relief for owners of 1-4 units of housing property who significantly improve the existing structure. The structure
must be at least 40-years old and located within a locally designated revitalization zone.

12| Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Housing Opportunity Zones — Effective April 1, 2022, a city or town can establish a Housing Opportunity Zone under the
Community Revitalization Tax Relief Incentive (RSA 79-E: 4-c). No less than one-third of the housing units constructed can be
designated for households with an income of 80 percent or less of the area median income as measured by the HUD, or the
housing units in a qualifying structure shall be designated for households with incomes as provided in RSA 204-C:57, IV. A
qualifying structure under this section can be eligible for tax assessment relief for a period of up to 10 years.

Workforce Housing Incentives — Beginning July 1, 2023, incentives established as housing for older persons shall be deemed
applicable to workforce housing development under RSA 674:17 (IV). If a municipality allows an increased density, reduced lot
size, expedited approval, or other dimensional or procedural incentive under this section for the development of housing for
older persons, as defined and regulated pursuant to RSA 354-A:15, VIII, it may allow the same incentive for the development
of workforce housing as defined in RSA 674:58, IV.

E. Description of the Lakes Region

New Hampshire's Lakes Region is an area comprised of 31 communities in the central part of the state with rolling hills in the
south and east, transitioning to more rugged, forested mountain ranges as one heads north and west. As the name implies,
much of the state’s surface water (43%) is found within this region. Much of the region’s economy is linked to natural resources,
through tourism and associated industries. This includes watersports and outdoor recreation businesses, vacation
accommodations, and restaurants. (See Figure 1 below.)

13|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Figure 1

14| Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

The major north-south roadways in the Lakes Region include I-93, US 3, NH 11, NH 16, NH 28, NH 106, and the major east-west routes
include NH 109, NH 25, NH 104, and NH 140. The communities tend to be rural. Occasionally, a state road serves as the main street
though town. Municipal populations range from less than one thousand (Hebron) to over 17,000 (Laconia). There is very little public
transportation.

While many live year-round in the area, some workers are unable to find affordable housing in the region and commute in from
elsewhere. There are many second homes in the Lakes Region and there is also a strong seasonal rental market. The Lakes Region is

home to many retirees.

The Lakes Region covers all of Belknap and parts of Carroll, Grafton, and Merrimack Counties (see Figure 2 below). There are many
ways of grouping communities.

15| Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Figure 2

16| Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Each community in the state is assigned to a Labor Market Area (LMA) based on a variety
of economic factors. “A general definition for an LMA is an economically integrated area
within which individuals can reside and find employment within a reasonable distance or
can readily change jobs without changing their place of residence.” (NHES). Shown below
are the current Labor Market Areas in central and northern New Hampshire. The 31 Lakes
Region communities comprise four complete LMAs and portions of four other LMAs.
Labor Market Areas play an important role in the modelling of future housing need.

Figure 3

Source: New Hampshire Employment Security (NHES), (2022)

17| Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

V. Analysis of Historical/Existing Conditions & Trends

Many factors affect year-round housing needs in the Lakes Region, but the two primary determinants are our population and
employment trends. These include the people, the housing, and economy of the region. Below, we explore specific aspects of these
factors and how they form our current and future housing conditions and trends.

The data in this report comes from several sources, primarily the US Census Bureau. Where possible, we utilize data from the Decennial
Census which strives to count every person every ten years, thus the data is far more reliable than the US Census Bureau’s American
Community Survey (ACS) data. However, some of the data does comes from the ACS. The ACS surveys a random selection of roughly
10,000 households in New Hampshire each year. All ACS data used in this document rely on the 5-year ACS estimates that consist of
an average of 5 years of data. In this case, we used the 2006-2010, 2011-2015, and 2016-2020 5-year estimates. As a result, the
numbers do not always add up to the same total, but are the best and most current available data.

A. Demographic / Socioeconomic Trends
1. Population is growing, but at a slower rate than in the previous decade.

From 2010 to 2020, the
year-round resident
population of the Lakes
Region grew from
119,725 to 125,258
(4.6%) with the addition
of 5,533 people. This
growth rate is slightly
lower than the 6.6%
growth rate (7,405
residents) seen in the
previous decade, from
2000 to 2010.

Figure 4

Source: US Census Bureau (2020)

18| Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

A recent (2022) report from the NH Office of Planning and Development (OPD) projects that under currently
anticipated conditions the region’s current growth trend will continue until about 2040 and then slowly decline.

Figure 5

Source: US Census Bureau (2020), NH Office of Planning & Development (2022)

Figure 6

19| Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

See also Appendix B — Quantitative Data: Population and Projections table for more detail.

The change in population varied among Lakes Region communities during the past decade. As shown in below,
Moultonborough had the highest population growth rate from 2010 to 2020 (22%), and the second greatest
change in population (874). Laconia had the greatest increase with 920 additional residents, followed by Alton
(644) and Gilford (573). The population of six Lakes Region communities decreased from 2010 to 2020.

Figure 7

Source: US Census Bureau, 2020

2. The number of people living in group quarters has remained fairly constant.

In 2020, about 3,900 Lakes Region residents (3% of the region’s population) were living in group quarters. This
proportion has remained relatively constant since 2000. Examples of group quarters include nursing homes,
prisons, and school dormitories. In the Lakes Region, the majority of group quarters residents (53%) are in

20|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

college or residential student housing, most of which is in Plymouth. Nursing homes serve as home to an
additional 25% of group quarters residents, including in Laconia (265), Meredith (236), and Tilton (157). Many
of the other Lakes Region communities have a small amount of group quarter residents within different
categories.

3. The Lakes Region is becoming somewhat more racially and ethnically diverse.

While the population of the Lakes Region continues to be more than 90% white (96% in 2010, 92% in 2020), it
has become a bit more diverse. From 2010 to 2020, most of the growth in the Lakes Region population over the
past decade has been in the non-white population. The increase of 5,533 residents included 5,026 non-white
people.

Figure 8

Source: US Census Bureau, 2020

21|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Figure 9

Source: US Census Bureau, 2020

4, Lakes Region population is aging.

The Lakes Region has experienced a great shift towards an aging population with an increase in residents aged
65+, rising from an estimated 19,204 in 2010 to 28,366 in 2020. This increase is happening in all Lakes Region
municipalities. The number of youth (18 and under) in the region has dropped (25,420 to 21,345). The median

age in the Lakes Region has risen from 44 to 49 since 2010, continuing an upward trend that has been seen since
1980.

22|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

People aged 65 and older now comprise nearly a quarter of the Lakes Region’s population, up from 16% just a
decade ago. While New Hampshire is experiencing similar trends in aging, they are more pronounced in the
Lakes Region.

Figure 10

Source: US Census Bureau ACS, 2020

23 |Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Figure 11

Source: US Census Bureau ACS, 2020

24 |Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

5. Growing percentage of 1- and 2-person (smaller) households.

A household is the number of people living together in a housing unit. In 2010, 66% percent of Lakes Region
households (31,284) were one- or two-person households — by 2020, that had grown to 71% (35,855). The share
of 1- and 2-person households in individual communities ranged from 57% (Effingham) to 83% (Sandwich). See
Appendix B — Quantitative Data: People per Household for more detail. Since 2010, the average household size
for renters has remained at 2.28 persons while the average size of an owner-occupied household dropped
slightly from 2.48 to 2.42 persons.

Figure 12

Source: US Census Bureau ACS, 2020

25|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

6. No significant change in family/non-family households in the Lakes Region.

According to the ACS Five-Year estimates, there are 51,073 occupied households in the Lakes Region. About
two-thirds of these are family-occupied, consistent with the previous decade.

Figure 13

Source: US Census Bureau ACS; 2020

In addition to population change, employment is the other major factors driving housing need.

26 |Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

7. The Lakes Region labor force has been fairly consistent over the past two decades.

Over the past 20 years the Lakes Region Labor Force has shown some variation but remained between 60,000
and 65,000 people.

Figure 14

Source: NH ELMI

27 |Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

While the Labor Force has remained between 60,000 and 65,000, unemployment has ranged from 2.4% up to
6.7% since 2000 but has generally remained below 4%. These figures do vary somewhat within individual
communities.

Figure 15

Average Unemployment Rates 2000- 2020

8%
- 6.7%
6%
5%
4%

3%

2% 5 4% 2.5%
1%

0%

2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
20089
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
20185
2020

Source: NH ELMI

28| Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

8. The number of jobs in the Lakes Region has grown by about 10% in
the past decade.

The number of jobs in the Lakes Region increased by about 10% from 2009-
2019. There are five industries in the Lakes Region that comprise more
than 60% of the jobs in the region: Retail, Health Care & Social Assistance,
Education, Accommodations & Food Services, and Manufacturing. This
general pattern has been consistent for at least the past decade.

Figure 16

’ Employment by Industry in the Lakes Region 2009 & 2019

2019 2009

Industry Count Share Count Share
Retail Trade 7,345 15.7% 6,373 15.1%
Health Care and Social Assistance 7,241 15.5% 7,471 17.7%
Educational Services 5,771 12.4% 5,540 13.1%
Accommodation and Food Services 5,553 11.9% 4,384 10.4%
Manufacturing 4,761 10.2% 4,396 10.4%
Construction 2,625 5.6% 2,068 4.9%
Public Administration 2,519 5.4% 2,196 5.2%
Administration & Support, Waste Management/Remediation 1,970 4.2% 1,240 2.9%
Professional, Scientific, and Technical Services 1,496 3.2% 1,503 3.6%
Other Services (excluding Public Administration) 1,431 3.1% 1,434 3.4%
Arts, Entertainment, and Recreation 1,313 2.8% 1,158 2.7%
Management of Companies and Enterprises 895 1.9% 583 1.4%
Wholesale Trade 892 1.9% 1,020 2.4%
Finance and Insurance 816 1.7% 1,067 2.5%
Transportation and Warehousing 690 1.5% 514 1.2%
Real Estate and Rental and Leasing 419 0.9% 365 0.9%
Information 378 0.8% 436 1.0%
Utilities 297 0.6% 282 0.7%
Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing and Hunting 137 0.3% 101 0.2%
Mining, Quarrying, and Qil and Gas Extraction 123 0.3% 85 0.2%
Total 46,672 42,216

Source: US Census Bureau, Census on the Map; 2020

29| Page




(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Figure 17

Source: US Census Bureau, Census on the Map; 2019

The industries that have experienced the most growth include Accommodations & Food Services, Retail,
Construction, and Waste Management. These also tend to be among the lowest paying jobs in the region. There
were declines in Health Care & Social Assistance, Wholesale Trade, and Financial Services.

30|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

9. There are a number of large employers in Lakes Region, Laconia is central to the region’s work force.

Despite the generally rural nature of the Lakes Region, more than half of the region’s communities are host to
an employer of more than 100 employees.

Twenty businesses in the Lakes Region employ more than 250 people, but most businesses in the region have
less than 250 employees.
Figure 18

Source: NHES GranitStats (2022)

31|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Figure 19

Source: NHES Granite Stats, 2022

The list below shows some of the region’s large businesses located in Laconia.

Figure 20

Employer

Business Description

CONCORD HOSPITAL-LACONIA

Hospitals

NEW HAMPSHIRE BALL BEARINGS

Ball & Roller Bearing (mfg)

LAKES REGION COMMUNITY SVC

Non-Profit Organizations

TITEFLEX AEROSPACE

Rubber & Plastics-Hose & Belting (mfg)

BELKNAP COUNTY

County Government-General Offices

FREUDENBERG-NOK GP

Seals-Oil/Grease & etc. (mfg)

LACONIA REHABILITATION CTR

Nursing & Convalescent Homes

CENTRAL NH VNA & HOSPICE

Hospices

ROBERT H IRWIN MOTORS LLC

Automobile Dealers-New Cars

TAYLOR HOME

Non-Profit Organizations

LACONIA CENTER

Nursing & Convalescent Homes

BELKNAP CTY NURSING HOME

Non-Profit Organizations

NASWA RESORT

Resorts

32|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

10. Communities with more top employers generally have lower commute times.

In 2020, the average commute time for residents in the Lakes Region was 28.2 minutes, which is an almost 2-
minute increase from 2010. Communities with the longest commute include Barnstead (38.8), Danbury (35.9),
and Andover (35.3); all of which have only one major employer. In contrast, many communities with the shortest
commute times had higher concentrations of large employers, this includes Plymouth (17.2) and Laconia (19.1).

11. School enrollment has been steadily declining in the Lakes Region since 2013.

Figure 21

School enrollment in the Lakes Region has
been steadily declining over the past
decade. Since 2013, school enrollment
has fallen by 10%, with a loss of 1,581
students. The overall youth population
had a more dramatic decline of 16%
(4,075) over this same time period. This
pattern is also mirrored in the gradual
decline of youth population and in family
households since 2010 in the Lakes
Region.

Source: NH Department of Education, 2022

Communities of Interest (COI) - Populations That May Have Housing Challenges

1. Seniors: population ages 65 years and over are increasing.

In both the State and Lakes Region, the senior population has increased over the last decade. However, in the
Lakes Region, the number of seniors makes up a larger proportion of the population and has had larger
percentage increases than in the rest of the state. This increase is attributed to the aging Baby Boomer
population as well as the influx of retirees into the region. Often empty nesters, this population usually desires
smaller housing units. Continuing care retirement communities provide a continuum of life cycle care from
independent housing to assisting living to nursing home care.

33|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Figure 22
Percentage of Elderly in Lakes Region vs. State
2010-2020
25% 23%
205

16%

15% 13%
105

5%

050

2010

B LRPC Elderly (65+) Population

19% I 189%
I 15%

2015 2020

MNH Elderly (65+) Population

Source: US Census Bureau ACS, 2020

2. Grandparents taking care of
grandchildren.

The Lakes Region has seen a substantial
increase in  grandparents living with
grandchildren from 2010 to 2020 (1,790 to
2,681). In 2020, nearly 40% of those
grandparents were responsible for their
grandchildren, up from 30% in 2010. These
figures are higher than the proportion for the
state.

Figure 23

Source: US Census Bureau ACS, 2020

34|Page




(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

These figures may be indicators of other socioeconomic factors in the region, such as the incarceration of a
parent or an increase in multigenerational households because of rising housing costs. The grandparents may
need to remain in their original home to accommodate their grandchildren, incurring additional costs and
maintenance responsibilities.

3. Racial/Ethnic minorities have increased.

Since 2010, the racial/ethnic minority population in the Lakes Region has increased, from 2.8% of the population
to 7.8% in 2020. For the state, the racial/ethnic minority population increased from 4.9% in 2010 to 12.8% in

2020.
Figure 24

Source: US Census Bureau, 2020

35|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

In the region, the largest racial/ethnic group are persons who are of two or more races (3.9%), followed by Asian
(0.9%), Black/African American (0.5%), Other (0.4%) and American Indian/Alaska Native (0.2%). As an ethnicity,
regardless of race, 1.9% of the population is Hispanic/Latino as of 2020.

Some of this growth is the result of recent immigration to the area. These communities may have challenges in
obtaining housing including language, financial, education, employment, and culture. Efforts should be made to
ensure that these groups have equal access to housing opportunities and that there is no discrimination. See
Appendix B — Quantitative Data: Lakes Region Population by Race/Ethnicity for more detail.

4. More than one third of households are led by single parents.

Households headed by single parents
comprise approximately one-third of
all households in the Lakes Region in
2020. Of the total single parent
households, 70% are single female
head of household and 30% single
male head of household. Single
parents usually rely on one income to
afford housing and caring for their
children. Some rental properties are
not child-friendly and typically have
one- and two-bedroom units. There
should ideally be  sufficient
affordable two- and three-bedroom
rental units for this family type.

Figure 25

Source: US Census Bureau ACS, 2020

36|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

5.

Single adults.

From 2010 to 2020, the Lakes Region generally has the same percentage of single adults living alone (26% and
28%) as the entire state (25% and 27%). Both have experienced a slight increase of people living alone over this

time.

a. Single adults ages 15-64 (working age).

The percentage of working age single adults living alone has decreased in the Lakes Region by 5%
from 2015 to 2020. Single adults of working age now make up 14% of the households in the Lakes
Region, similar to the state’s 15% of total households.

The gender composition is about the same for both Lakes Region and the state. Males make up
a slightly larger percentage of working age adults living alone in each. This demographic needs
smaller single- or two-bedroom housing units.

Those aged 50 to 70 years comprise the largest age cohort in New Hampshire and has fewer
persons aged 25 to 40, compared to the United States.
(https://carsey.unh.edu/what-is-new-hampshire/sections/demography).

New Hampshire has the second highest median age at 43.1 years, only Maine is higher at 45.0
years with the United States with a median age of 38.4.

b. Single adults ages 65 and older are increasing.

As of 2020, over half (50.7%) of the people living alone in the Lakes Region were 65 and older.
This figure is about 10% higher than in 2010. Compared to the state, our “living alone” population
is also higher which is to be expected given that many retire to the Lakes Region. The Lakes Region
has attracted retirees as permanent or seasonal residents.

37|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Figure 26

Lakes Region People Living Alone by Age

0% 20% 40% 60% 80%

B Under 64 (Age 15-64) 65 and Over

100%

Source: US Census Bureau ACS, 2020

Not surprisingly, there are significantly more older women who live alone compared to men as
the life expectancy for females is longer than males. For all persons 65 and over living alone in

the Lakes Region, 65% are female and 35% are male.

The increase in older single population is another factor driving the increased demand for smaller
housing types such as one- and two-bedroom rentals to suit the needs of the Lakes Region’s

population.

38| Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

6. More than 2,000 Lakes Region households without a vehicle.

Just under 5% of Lakes Region households were without a vehicle, similar to the state, and slightly lower than
in 2010.

Figure 27

Source: US Census Bureau ACS, 2020

There are a total of 2,475 households in the Lakes Region that do not have vehicles. 949 are owner-occupied
and 1,526 of them are renter-occupied households. Plymouth has the largest percentage (14%) of households
without a car, which can be attributed to off-campus student housing associated with Plymouth State University.

7. Nearly half the region’s renters are low-income households.

Very low-income households are defined as having less than 50% of the HUD Area Median Family Income (AMFI)
but more than 30%, while those below 30% AMFI are considered extremely low-income. *Linked to AMI, but
with adjustments for different sized families www.huduser.gov.

39|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Overall, the proportion of low-income
renters has risen slightly while the
proportion of such owners has
remained constant. The total
percentage of low-income renters is
significantly larger than the proportion
of homeowners (49% vs. 16%).

The proportion of very low- and
extremely low-income homeowners
has remained constant (9% and 7%
respectively). The percentage of
extremely low-income renters
decreased 3% recently but the
percentage of very low-income renters
increased 4%.

These numbers indicate a need in the
Lakes Region for some forms of rental
housing assistance.

Figure 28

30%

25%

20%

15%

10%

5%

0%

Low Income HH in Lakes Region:
Owners & Renters

27%

25%

20%

24%

9%

7%

2009-2013

7%

2014-2018

=R enter Extremely Low Incomess===Owner Extremely Low Income

Renter Very Low Income

Owner Very Low Income

Source: HUD CHAS (2022)

40| Page




(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

8. The Lakes Region has a high proportion of persons with disabilities.

In 2020, the Lakes Region percentage of population reporting a disability! (16.87%) was greater than the state
(12.74%). From 2015 to 2020, the number of persons reporting a disability increased 21.6% while the population
increased by only 1.7%. The high percentage of disability in this region may be indicative of our aging population
who may need additional supportive housing. Persons with mental and physical disabilities of all ages also need
supportive housing such as group homes.

9. Limited English proficiency.

Approximately 1,000 Lakes Region residents (about 0.8%) have limited English proficiency. Franklin has the
highest rate in the region at 2.8% of its population, followed by Barnstead and Northfield at 2.0% of their
populations. Limited English proficiency may limit a person’s ability to obtain housing and to understand all
contractual obligations with respect to buying and leasing.

10. Many Veterans in the Lakes Region.

There were 9,754 veterans living in the Lakes Region in 2020, or nearly 8% of our population. This is slightly
higher than the state’s average veteran population of just under 7% of the total population. Veterans may
require special services in addition to housing due to injuries and conditions from their military service.

1 The U.S. Census Bureau defines disability using six types of difficulty: hearing, vision, cognitive, ambulatory, self-care, and independent living. “Disability status
is determined from the answers from these six types of difficulty. For children under 5 years old, hearing and vision difficulty are used to determine disability
status. For children between the ages of 5 and 14, disability status is determined from hearing, vision, cognitive, ambulatory, and self-care difficulties. For people
aged 15 years and older, they are considered to have a disability if they have difficulty with any one of the six difficulty types.”

Source: American Community Survey and Puerto Rico Community Survey 2020 Subject Definitions at
https://www?2.census.gov/programs-surveys/acs/tech docs/subject definitions/2020 ACSSubjectDefinitions.pdf.

41| Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

11. Youths under 18.

The Lakes Region shows a slightly smaller percentage of youth population compared to the state over the past
decade. Both the Lakes Region and the state show a trend of decrease in the percentage of youth population
since 2010. It is unknown the number of youths under 18 who do not reside in adequate housing due to lack of
family or caretakers. Youths under 18 are not likely to own or rent housing, so they must be in foster or
institutional care.

12. Homeless populations.

There are multiple types of homelessness, all relate to not having a fixed, regular, adequate nighttime residence
—something that so many of us take for granted. Data on homelessness in New Hampshire is limited. Statewide,
the annual January point-in-time count has recorded between 1,300 and 1,700 homeless persons
(www.nhceh.org) and well over 4,000 experiencing homelessness throughout the year. Homeless persons
require temporary shelters, transitional housing and social services which tends to be more available in
urbanized municipalities. Getting a clearer picture of the number of people in the Lakes Region experiencing
homelessness would enable communities and service providers to better plan and assist those individuals.

13. People in group quarters who return home (i.e., formerly incarcerated populations, college graduates
returning home).

The number of people in group quarters in the Lakes Region dropped slightly from 2010 — 2020, from 3,927 to
3,886. More than 2,000 of those people were students. Almost a 1,000 were people in nursing facilities. There
are no specific data on the number of former group quarter populations who return home to live with family in
the Lakes Region. The Boomerang Generation are young adults who graduate and then return home to live with
their parents due to financial or other reasons.

14. Persons with substance abuse disorder, mental illness.

Persons with substance abuse disorders and/or mental illness require specialized housing with services. Such
housing may be temporary or permanent. While some persons may need to be institutionalized, others may be
able to occupy group homes.

42 |Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

15. Families that rent.

Figure 29

The Lakes Region has slightly lower
rates of families that rent compared to
the state. The trends from 2010 to
2020 have remained about the same.
Families with children face challenges
in finding rental units that are both
large enough and affordable.

Source: US Census ACS, 2020
Housing Unit Trends and Characteristics

1 Number of housing units — Occupied/Vacant/Seasonal. Figure 30

The number of housing units in the Lakes Region has increased by 1,174 | | akes Region

units between 2010 and 2020. Only two-thirds of these are considered | Housing Units 2010 | 2020 | Change

occupied housing units, the remainder are listed as vacant. In most of | Total 76,200| 77,374| 1,174
the Lakes Region, these vacant units are primarily seasonal units. Occupied 48,922 52,856 3,934
Vacant 27,278| 24,518| (2,760)

43 | Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Figure 31

Vacant Housing — The
Census defines many
different types of
vacant housing.
Approximately 80% of
the vacant housing in
the Lakes Region is
considered seasonal.
This varies by
community.

Vacant housing units are unoccupied at the time of the Census. This includes many
sub-categories — the unit might be for sale or rent or it may only be utilized
seasonally, which is often the case for Lakes Region housing units. (For a detailed
listing by municipality see Appendix B — Quantitative Data: Vacant Housing Types.)
Census data does indicate that more than 2,700 of the vacant units from a decade
ago are now considered occupied.

Source: US Census Bureau, 2020

2. The population of the Lakes Region is growing faster than the total number of

housing units.

The population of the Lakes Region increased 4.6% from 2010 to 2020. The number
of housing units has increased in the past decade from 76,200 to 77,374, representing a growth rate of 1.5%.
This is much slower than the population growth.

Figure 32
Lakes Region — Population and Housing Units Change People per unit
% Change

2010 2020 2010-2020 '10-'20 2010 2020
Population 119,725 125,258 5,533 4.62%
Total Housing Units 76,200 77,374 1,174 1.54% 1.57 1.62
Occupied Housing Units 48,922 52,856 3,934 8.04% 2.45 2.37
Vacant Housing Units 27,278 24,518 (2,760) -10.12%

Source: US Census Bureau, 2020

44 |Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

A closer look at the nature of housing in the region shows that while there has been an increase of 1,174 units,
a larger number of the units are now occupied (3,934 more). This is a factor in helping to accommodate the
additional residents in the area. Much of the change appears to have come from vacant units becoming
occupied. In the Lakes Region, these vacant units are typically seasonal units but may include rentals, properties
being sold, or other. With the number of occupied housing units increasing by 3,934 over the decade (8.0%),

that equates to a rate of 393 newly occupied units per year.

3. Lakes Region has a high percentage of vacant (seasonal) housing units.

The Lakes Region has a very high
rate of vacant (mainly seasonal)
housing units compared to New
Hampshire as a whole. In 2020,
there was a decrease in its
proportion of vacant housing; the
Lakes Region proportion remained
twice as high as the state. This
trend can be attributed to the
Lakes Region being a vacation
destination where many people
own seasonal second homes.
According to the US Census
Bureau, the Decennial counts
seasonal vacant units under the
category of vacant, so they are
included within these statistics.
Source: US Census Bureau, 2020

Figure 33

45| Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

4, The most common housing type in the Lakes Region is single-family housing (SFH).

About three quarters of the housing units in the Lakes Region are single detached units.

Figure 34

Source: US Census Bureau, 2020

46| Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

5. Bedrooms per housing unit rose slightly.

One method of measuring the size of a housing unit is by the number of bedrooms it contains. The number and
proportion of 4-bedroom housing units in the Lakes Region is increasing, while the proportion of most other-
sized housing units is decreasing.

Bedrooms per Housing Unit — Lakes Region

Figure 35
2010

0 Bedroom 1 Bedroom 2 Bedroom 3 Bedroom 4 Bedroom 5+ Bedroom
1,143 7,958 23,385 30,160 8,965 3,288

1.5% 10.6% 31.2% 40.3% 12.0% 4.4%

- a2 ]

1,667 8,208 24,295 31,687 10,967 2,872

2.1% 10.3% 30.5% 39.8% 13.8% 3.6%

Source: US Census Bureau ACS, 2020
The increase in 4-bedroom housing units during the same time frame as there is an increase in 1- and 2-person
households in the region points to a mismatch of housing need and supply. Note that the figures for bedrooms

per housing unit do include seasonal housing units.

6. Density of housing units.

Housing unit density is usually market driven but building higher density housing outside of downtowns and
urban centers can be an effective affordable housing strategy. The land, labor and materials required to build
high density housing is often much lower than building a single-family home. Density of housing in our region
varies greatly. In 2020, the average number of housing units per acre was 0.11, slightly lower than the state
average of 0.14. Lakes Region communities ranged from 0.61 units/acre (Laconia) to 0.02 units/acre (Sandwich).

47 |Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Figure 36
Housing Units per acre- Lakes Region (2020)
0.7
0.6
0.5
0.4
0.3
0.2 ‘ |
T
. Il nnnnnnnnnnns.
m Cc - T = + 5057 C £ oo £ T C g 5 = U oA CoC - £ m = =
£E2SEf55255295:85528£8¢88558€:235555°¢
CD EFZ - EE£E 0 22 FE 2T HE=E2 EF cCc £Eo g o L £ o =
o R R EEE D EIgmmmDngTﬁuﬂm c T
= Lo ] g = ¢t g 9 L o thﬁDE_DIEmC-Cﬁ m C
= =g 2 20 m £ & T 5 = eI < F U O =
= = § o S oo 2 0 o — W
e — T & 7y E
= =7
o w =
=
Source: US Census Bureau, 2020 .
Figure 37
7. Number of units authorized by building permit — Number of LR Units Permitted- Single- Multi-Family
single _family, multifamily, and manufactured | soo

housing.

Records from NH OPD indicate that between 2010 and
2020, a total of 3,272 housing units were permitted and
that 78% of them were single family units while 22%
were multi-family units. Note: Authorization of a
building permit does necessarily mean that the housing
unit was actually constructed.

400

300

20

[=]

10

(=]

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

B Single Family Units B Multi-Family Units

48 |Page




(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

8. Age of housing stock — much of the region’s housing built in 1970s, -80s, & -90s.

While the Lakes Region housing stock spans a broad time span, much of it was built during the 1970s, -80s, and
-90s. Older housing stock runs the risk of contaminants such as lead paint and the associated costs of
remediation.

Figure 38

Year Built - Owner-Occupied Housing
Lakes Region

Before 1940,
17.8%

1940-1969,
16.6%

Source: US Census Bureau ACS, 2020

49| Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

9. Short-term rentals —
many rentals in the

Lakes Region.

A recent State-wide
Snapshot of Short-Term
Rentals (May 2022 using
AirDNA) found 5,550 units
available statewide. Nearly a
guarter of these were in the
Lakes Region (1,281). It is
conceivable that some of
these short-term rental units
might be units that could
have been made available as
year-round housing.

Figure 39

Source: Air DNA, May 2022
D. Distribution of Workforce and Affordable Housing

New Hampshire State Law, RSA 674:58-61, requires communities to provide reasonable opportunities for housing alternatives
affordable to the local workforce.

This may involve permitting land uses that include the development of income restricted housing. It may also include ensuring

that infrastructure such as sewer and water facilities are available and affordable along with other strategies that could reduce
the costs of development.

50|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

In the Lakes Region, there are 2,238 income-restricted housing
units (about 4% of the total occupied housing units). 1,152 are
designated for families, 1,039 for the elderly, and 37 for those with
special needs. There are units in 16 of the thirty-one communities
in the Lakes Region (see table at right).

A detailed listing of the Lakes Region’s various income-restricted
properties is provided in Appendix B — Quantitative Data: Income-
Restricted Housing tables. Sizes of developments vary from half a
dozen to 100 units. There are numerous types of financing and
rental assistance available to help make these units available to
residents.

Sources: NHHFA Directory of Assisted Housing (2022), HUD LIHTC, MF, and Section 8
databases, USDA Rural MF Housing Search, National Housing Preservation Database.

Figure 40
Income-Restricted Housing
In the Lakes Region by Community
Community Sum of Total Units
Laconia 569
Franklin 389
Plymouth 216
Belmont 145
Meredith 139
Ashland 132
Wolfeboro 132
Tilton 124
Bristol 115
Gilford 106
Ossipee 48
Tamworth 39
Northfield 36
Alton 26
Moultonborough 12
Sandwich 10
Total 2,238

51|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

E. Housing Market, Cost and Affordability

Housing affordability is reached when the costs of housing are less than 30% of the income of a person/family. This section
first a look at incomes around the region, then the cost of housing, for both renters and owners.

1. Median household income rose in the Lakes Region, but not the same for all households.

Median household income in the Lakes Region increased more than 25% from 2010 to 2020. But it did not

increase evenly across all household types. Owner-occupied households saw an increase of nearly 28%, while
renters saw a much more modest 14% increase over this decade.

Figure 41

Source: US Census Bureau ACS, 2020

52|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

2. Mortgage applicants are older in the Lakes Region.

Young first-time renters and homebuyers now face larger financial burdens when attempting to rent or purchase
their first home due to escalating housing costs. Often, these young adults must share a rental unit with other
young adults to afford the rent. Very few young adults have the credit history, down payment, and income
necessary to purchase a house. Some rely on their parents to provide financial assistance. The table below
indicates that mortgage applicants in Lakes Region counties tend to be older than those in the rest of state.
(Note: Belknap County is the only county that is entirely within the Lakes Region.

Figure 42
Age of Mortgage Applicant, 2018-2020
35.0%
30.0%
25.0%
20.0%
15.0%
10.0%
5.0% I I I I
25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65-74
B New Hampshire  ® Belknap County  m Carroll County Grafton County ~ ® Merrimack County

Source: FFIEC, Home Mortgage Disclosure Act (2022)

53|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

3. Housing market — sales prices have doubled in the last twenty years, rent continues to rise.

Over the past two decades, homes sales prices in the Lakes Region have more than doubled in value from
$142,000 in 2002 to $359,966 in the first half of 2022 according to MLS reports. During that same time frame a
20% down payment went from $28,400 to $71,993.

Figure 43

Source: NHHFA, 2022

54| Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Between 2010 and 2020, median home sales prices jumped $109,500 (66%). In the last couple of years from
2020 through the first half of 2022, median sales prices jumped another $100,000 (36%). Most of these figures
are a bit below the New Hampshire average.

Figure 44

Median Home Sales Price- Lakes Region

450
400
350
300
250

200
. |II|||||
10

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Year Sold

Thousands

L R |

NH B LRPC

Source: NHHFA, 2022

55|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Median rent for an apartment has increased around the Lakes Region according to annual survey data provided
by NHHFA. In 2009 the median monthly rent for an apartment was $867, in 2022 it was $1,109, an increase of

28%.

Figure 45
Median Rent in the Lakes Region
51,200
51,000
. SBOO
£
= 5500
=
=
= a0
5200
5-
Sz oo L8232 288558498 H
R ERERRAREEEREERRERAREERERERBERAEER

Year

lsthaf2022

Source: NHHFA, 2022

56| Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Availability of rentals: The vacancy rate for rentals is an indicator of how many units are available to someone
seeking to rent. In 2009, the vacancy rate in apartments was 9.3%, in 2022, it was 1.1%.

Figure 46

Source: NHHFA, 2022

57|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

4, Measures of housing affordability — more renters are overburdened.

The proportion of renters who have an affordability problem (>30% of income to housing) has increased in the
past decade at all income levels. More renters at higher income levels are having to commit >30% of their
income to housing. Nearly half of households earning between $35 — 50,000 were overburdened.

This data also indicates that 44% of renters aged 64 and under were cost burdened in both 2010 and 2020. 42%
of renters aged 65 and over were cost burdened in 2010 but that had dropped to 34% in 2020.

Figure 47

Source: US Census Bureau ACS, 2020

58| Page



Figure 48

(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0}

*

Cost Burdened Owner by Income Level-
Lakes Region

<D$20K $20-535K  $35-350K  $50-375K >875K

W 2010 w2020

Exploring homeowner cost burden by age, a smaller proportion of
homeowners were cost burdened than renters in both age groups and,
according to the ACS data, those proportions dropped between 2010 and

2020.

5. Housing affordability by occupation.

Similar data indicates that for owners, 62% of those in
the $20K-25K range were over-burdened and nearly
half of the households making $35K-50K were
overburdened. While the graph indicates that things
improved slightly from 2010 to 2020, it should be
pointed out that some homeowners in the region
were still feeling the effects of the real estate crash of
2008-09.

Source: US Census Bureau ACS, 2020

Figure 49

Cost Burdened Owners >30%

2010 2020

64 & under | 38% 24%

65 & over 32% 29%

Root Policy Research calculated the affordability of renting and owning based on those rental and sales figures
and the median wages for more than a dozen different occupations found in the Lakes Region. The median
monthly rent in the Lakes Region in 2022 was $1,109 and the median home selling price in the region in 2022
was $374,500. Median annual wages in the Lakes Region for many occupations have been calculated. The table
below shows that even on the highest median salaries housing costs are not affordable (<30%) for most of these

occupations.

59| Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Housing Affordability by Occupation in the Lakes Region

Figure 50
Can Can afford
Max Max Max affordable Can afford median home
Number Annual monthly | affordable | home price with afford median price with
Employed Median gross home 2 workers in the | median home 2 workers per

in Region Wage rent price same field rent? price? household?
Engineers 450 $86,392 | $2,160 | $251,057 $502,113 Yes No Yes
Registered Nurses 660 | $81,316 | $2,033 | $236,306 $472,613 Yes No Yes
Police and sheriff's patrol officers 250 | $56,002 | $1,400 | $162,742 $325,483 Yes No No
Electricians 250 $52,774 | $1,319 | $153,362 $306,724 Yes No No
Heavy & Tractor-Trailer Truck Drivers 480 | $52,107 | $1,303 | $151,424 $302,849 Yes No No
Office Clerks, General 870 $40,942 | $1,024 | $118,978 $237,957 No No No
Construction Laborers 310 | $40,938 | $1,023 | $118,966 $237,932 No No No
Assemblers and fabricators 490 | $36,673 $917 | $106,571 $213,142 No No No
Janitors & cleaners 640 | S$32,317 $808 | $93,914 $187,828 No No No
Home Health and Personal Care Aides 740 | $31,777 $794 | $92,346 $184,691 No No No
Retail Salespersons 1,340 | $31,034 $776 | $90,184 $180,367 No No No
Fast Food and Counter Workers 1,190 | $25,454 $636 | $73,969 $147,937 No No No
Cashiers 1,180 | $25,139 $628 | $73,053 $146,107 No No No
Childcare workers 130 | $24,304 $608 | $70,626 $141,253 No No No
Waiters and Waitresses 700 | $21,202 $530 | $61,613 $123,226 No No No

Assumptions: Median Rent - $1,109; Median Home Price $374,500, 10% Down payment, 6% Interest Rate, 40% Taxes, Utilities,

Insurance, 1.086 Inflation Factor

Sources: NH Rental Cost Survey (Median Rent), MLS data (Median Sold Price), Economic and Labor Market Information Bureau (Employment and Wages)

60| Page




(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

VI. Analysis of Future Conditions & Trends

A. Conditions Likely to Impact Future Housing Supply, Housing Affordability, Cost of Developing New Housing

1. Housing market and population projections.

Supply

The housing supply in the Lakes Region as elsewhere in the state, is for the most part, provided by the private
sector and therefore subject to market influences. The following factors will also impact future housing supply
in the Lakes Region.

Tourism

The Lakes Region economy is largely dependent on tourism. Many homes are either seasonal or second homes.
With more vacationers visiting and staying in the area, there will be increasing demand for lodging and short-
term rentals, placing further strain on the existing and future housing stock. In 2021, 7.6 million persons stayed
overnight in the Lakes Region — an increase of one-million-person nights over the previous year.
(https://www.travelstats.com/qgimpacts/newhampshire). If this trend continues, more permanent housing may
be converted to short-term rentals, subsequently decreasing affordability as demand for housing increases.

Remote Working

More and more workers, especially those in the tech industries, desire the ability to work from home or
anywhere but an office. During 2020, COVID-19 accelerated the number of workers who were required to work
from home. If a worker has an internet connection, they could work from anywhere and many decided to
relocate to more exurban and rural areas where they could also enjoy recreational opportunities. The Lakes
Region may see more seasonal homes converted to year-round housing as remote workers decide to stay
permanently. Some of the smaller homes will be demolished and replaced by larger and more expensive homes.

Employment Growth

Job growth will also increase the demand for housing in the region. Tourism is the major industry and with
lower wages for service industry workers, there will be increase in demand for more lower cost housing. Labor
market projections show the greatest growth in occupations will be for cashiers, retail salespersons, waiters and

6l|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

waitresses, landscaping and groundskeeping workers, and personal care aides. Median wages for these
occupations range from $27,622 to $40,435 annually.

Demographics

Housing supply is also influenced by population and household trends. The notable trends include a decreasing
household size, an aging population, and household income that is not keeping up with the cost of housing. As
noted earlier in the report, household sizes continue to decrease as the birthrate continues to decrease and the
population continues to age. The youngest of the Baby Boomers will be 65 years old in 2029, while the oldest
Boomers will be 83 which will increase the demand for additional retirement housing in the Lakes Region, a
popular retirement destination. These factors will generate a greater demand for smaller housing types.

Development Opportunities

In order to increase housing stock, property must be available that can be developed with new housing. The
type and price of housing that can be constructed is dictated by zoning, land cost, construction costs, and
infrastructure availability.

2. Zoning.

Traditional residential zoning regulates minimum lot size, housing density, types of housing, bulk requirements,
and accessory uses in towns that have adopted land use regulations. For single family homes, the larger the lot
size and lot frontage requirements, fewer homes can be constructed thus limiting the supply.

3. Land availability and value.

While there is a large amount of vacant and underutilized land in the Lakes Region, at any given time there is
only a limited amount that is available or suitable for development. A property owner must be willing to build
or sell their land for development in order to increase the supply of housing. If the cost of the land is too high
for the type of housing that can be constructed, nothing will be built. Property that is isolated from amenities
and services, has no infrastructure, is located in an undesirable location or is difficult to develop may not be
viable for housing construction.

The cost of land acquisition will also affect the supply and cost of housing and its type and size. In the Lakes
Region, land on the lakeshores with scenic views and adjacent to recreational amenities (e.g. ski areas)
command the highest values and will be developed with larger and more expensive housing. Also, if the land
value is equal to or exceeds the improvement value, then the property is considered ripe for redevelopment. In

62| Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

this case, smaller lakefront homes will be demolished and replaced by larger and more expensive housing.
According to the National Association of Home Builders, the New England area has the most expensive land
values in the country in 2020.
(https://www.nahb.org/blog/2021/08/Iot-values-surge-at-record-breaking-pace/).

4, Construction costs.

The cost of materials and labor also affect the supply of housing. The COVID-19 pandemic interrupted the
building materials supply chain and exacerbated construction labor shortage that continue to delay the
construction of housing. According to HomeAdvisor, the average cost to build a home in New Hampshire is
$307,500. (https://www.homeadvisor.com/cost/architects-and-engineers/build-a-house/). The cost of lumber
increased from $264.00/1000 board feet on March 30, 2020, to a high of $1,670.50/1000 board feet on May 10,
2021  (https://www.macrotrends.net/2637/lumber-prices-historical-chart-data) substantially increasing
housing construction costs. The price of lumber has fallen, but is still higher than pre-pandemic prices.
Continued labor shortages and global disruptions among other factors will increase construction costs in the
future.

5. Interest rates & inflation.

Inflation and interest rates will follow one another. In 2020, the inflation rate was 1.2%; in 2021, 4.7% and as of
October 2022, 7.7% (https://www.usinflationcalculator.com/inflation/historical-inflation-rates/). The mortgage
rate in 2020 was 3.11%; in 2021, 2.96%, and as of October 2022, 6.9%.
(https://www.freddiemac.com/pmms/pmms30).

Higher interest rates, both for construction loans and mortgages, negatively impact the cost of housing, making
it more expensive to borrow the funds needed to build and buy housing. For example, a buyer who could afford
the $275,000 median price of a house in 2020 at the interest rate of 3.11% on a fixed rate 30-year mortgage,
could now only afford a $231,275 house at the 6.29% December 1, 2022 interest rate.

The high demand for housing in 2020 and 2021 and the resulting housing shortage caused the price of housing

in the Lakes Region to skyrocket. The median price went from $275,000 in 2020 to $375,000 in 2022, an increase
of over 36%. Coupled with higher interest rates, housing has become less affordable. Historically, increased

63|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

interest rates soften demand and stabilize housing prices. There is evidence that the housing market is softening
as fewer buyers can afford the housing prices at the current high interest rates.
(https://www.cnbc.com/2022/09/21/existing-home-sales-fall-in-august-and-prices-soften-significantly.html).

6. Land Use Requlations affecting supply.

While there are some things that are beyond the control of local and regional stakeholders, there are some
things they can do to impact the availability and affordability of housing locally and regionally. The primary areas
where they can impact this are in Land Use policies, especially regarding where and how development can occur
along with ensuring that appropriate financial incentives are available. These will be discussed in detail in the
Housing Toolbox supplement (see VIII. Resources for Meeting Local Housing Needs/Recommendations for more
information).

B. Housing Needs Projections

As part of this state-wide project, NHODP contracted Root Policy Research to model Housing Need and Fair Share for
each region and municipality.

There are many factors that can determine housing needs in a region or community as noted above. The factors utilized
to model anticipated need were population growth and local share of the economy/workforce. This is similar to housing
assessments conducted for the Lakes Region over the past twenty years. In this model, these were each responsible for
half the projected need.

The total was augmented by an additional percentage to reflect the need to bring the region's housing supply up to a
healthy mobility-based vacancy rate (between 2% - 5%). The current vacancy rate of 1% restricts the availability of
housing units available for anyone in search of a place to move into.

The population of the Lakes Region is projected to grow from 125,258 to 137,939 residents (12,385 or 9.9%) between

2020 and 2040. In 2020 the Lakes Region had 52,856 occupied housing units. By 2040, it is projected that there will be
a need for an additional 7,444 units (14.1%).

64| Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

The table below shows the total number of occupied housing units counted in each Lakes Region community in the
2020 Census along with the total number of new housing units that are projected to be needed to:

a. accommodate growth through the year 2040 and
b. bring the vacancy rates up to rates that are considered healthy for mobility (2% - 5%).

The anticipated distribution of that housing is linked to the underlying factors of population change and share of the
region’s workforce economy. The balance between ownership and rental units was maintained at the 2020 ratio
through 2040.

Figure 51
Current Housing and Projected Housing Need
for Lakes Region communities by Tenure - 2040
Total Occupied New Housing
Housing Units - Units - Total Owners Renters
2020 2040 2040 2040
Alexandria town 714 102 66 35
Alton town 2,480 317 213 104
Andover town 962 118 78 40
Ashland town 938 124 81 43
Barnstead town 1,923 236 159 77
Belmont town 3,006 352 237 115
Bridgewater town 526 80 52 27
Bristol town 1,452 217 142 75
Center Harbor town 469 63 42 21
Danbury town 525 64 42 22
Effingham town 666 82 55 27
Franklin city 3,611 505 334 171
Freedom town 835 136 90 45
Gilford town 3,332 565 378 187
Gilmanton town 1,538 195 131 64
Hebron town 299 47 31 16
Hill town 433 61 40 21

65|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Total Occupied New Housing
Housing Units - Units - Total Owners Renters
2020 2040 2040 2040
Holderness town 845 129 85 45
Laconia city 7,550 1180 790 390
Meredith town 2,903 397 266 130
Moultonborough town 2,244 319 212 106
New Hampton town 948 125 84 41
Northfield town 1,908 268 177 90
Ossipee town 1,884 226 151 75
Plymouth town 1,987 334 218 116
Sanbornton town 1,224 210 141 69
Sandwich town 709 89 60 30
Tamworth town 1,282 165 110 55
Tilton town 1,654 258 173 85
Tuftonboro town 1,130 148 99 49
Wolfeboro town 2,879 333 222 111
LRPC - Total 52,856 7,444 4,962 2,482
Note: Some totals may not match the sum of Owners plus renters due to rounding.

Source: Housing Units 2020, US Census

Projected Housing Need, Root Policy Research contracted to NH Office of Planning & Development based on:
 Population Change - Population Projections OPD (2022)
® Economic Growth - Municipal Share of Labor Market Area
* Mobility-Based Housing Vacancy Rate (2% Owner, 5% Renter)

C. Fair Share Distribution
Every community throughout the state with zoning has an obligation to ensure that there is a reasonable and realistic

opportunity for affordable workforce housing to be built within the community according to New Hampshire RSA 674.
Affordability is based on the Area Median Income (AMI) and is defined in NH RSA 674:58.

66|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Generally, affordable housing is a generic term that refers to housing with covenants, subsidies, or other mechanisms to ensure
the availability of such housing for low and moderate-income households at a cost that leaves an adequate amount of
household income for other needs. To be considered affordable, the total cost of housing, including principal, interest, taxes
and utilities (ownership), or rent and utilities (rental), should be no more than 30 percent of a person’s or family’s gross income.

As referenced in NH RSA 674:58, workforce housing includes a variety of housing types (single family, duplex, apartments, and
multi-family) affordable to households with low or moderate-income. These individuals might include teachers, municipal
employees, retail employees, mechanics, restaurant and hotel workers, young professionals, and others with incomes at or
below the area median family income of a region. In New Hampshire, workforce housing includes homeownership affordable
to households with incomes up to 100 percent of the HUD area median income (AMI) for a four-person household and rental
housing up to 60 percent of the AMI for a household of three persons.

How much of the total housing should be made available as affordable workforce housing depends upon the local economy
and current affordable options in the community. Full data broken out by tenure as well as affordability are included in
Appendix A — Fair Share Analysis as well as the methodology for the model.

As is noted in the methodology of the Fair Share model referenced above, "A model based solely on demographic projections—
which are based on historical trends—would drive housing demand into urban areas and away from rural areas that are aging.
This would result in rural economies that cannot support the needs of aging residents, tourism and recreation activity—including
second and vacation homeowners—and economic development.”

In addition to showing the total number of occupied housing units in each Lakes Region community in 2020 and the total
number of new housing units that are projected to be needed, the table below indicates the number of these new housing
units in each Lakes Region community that ought to be affordable, either as a rental or as an ownership property. This
represents the community’s Fair Share of the new, affordable/workforce housing.

67|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Projected Housing Need for Lakes Region Communities, including
Fair Share Affordable Housing — 2040

Figure 52
Total Occupied Total Projected Affordable
Town Housing Units New Housing 2040 Housing Need 2040
2020 (Own + Rent)

Alexandria town 714 102 49
Alton town 2,480 317 120
Andover town 962 118 52
Ashland town 938 124 60
Barnstead town 1,923 236 95
Belmont town 3,006 352 160
Bridgewater town 526 80 33
Bristol town 1,452 217 103
Center Harbor town 469 63 18
Danbury town 525 64 30
Effingham town 666 82 35
Franklin city 3,611 505 232
Freedom town 835 136 67
Gilford town 3,332 565 188
Gilmanton town 1,538 195 81
Hebron town 299 47 18
Hill town 433 61 25
Holderness town 845 129 49
Laconia city 7,550 1,180 458
Meredith town 2,903 397 185
Moultonborough town 2,244 319 115
New Hampton town 948 125 59
Northfield town 1,908 268 122
Ossipee town 1,884 226 130
Plymouth town 1,987 334 167
Sanbornton town 1,224 210 79
Sandwich town 709 89 30
Tamworth town 1,282 165 81
Tilton town 1,654 258 123
Tuftonboro town 1,130 148 58
Wolfeboro town 2,879 333 139
LRPC - Total 52,856 7,444 3,163

Source: Housing Units 2020, US Census

Projected Housing Need, Root Policy Research contracted to NH Office of Planning & Development based on:
* Population Change - Population Projections OPD (2022)
e Economic Growth - Municipal Share of Labor Market Area
¢ Mobility-based Housing Vacancy Rate (2% Owner, 5% Renter)

68| Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Any model is an approximation of what exists or is anticipated and depends upon reliable data and realistic assumptions. The
fundamental elements of this model are population projections and NHOPD and the state’s regional planning commissions were
involved in refining the data and model as described in the methodology. Additional factors that were considered for refinement
include Buildable Land, Existing Infrastructure, NHHFA’'s Opportunity Index, and potential Community Resources based on property
valuation.

While each of these factors was considered, there was a general sense that the basic model created on population and economic
workforce does a reasonable job of representing the region. LRPC staff and advisors also felt that refinements to a housing model
without clear evidence of a significant anomaly might be considered as unfair in some way. Therefore, no refinements were applied
to these Fair Share numbers. A detailed table breaking out housing need by tenure and affordable vs. market rate housing in ten-year
increments can be found in Appendix A — Fair Share Analysis.

69|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

VII.

Affordable and Equitable Housing Choice Opportunities and Barriers

A. Land Use Regulations, Policies, and Other Controls

Barriers

The Final Report of the Commission to Study Barriers to Increase Density of Land Development in New Hampshire, SB 43,
Chapter 300:1, Laws of 2019 states that low density zoning or large lot zoning is seen as the main obstacle in providing
affordable housing in New Hampshire. In addition, other zoning restrictions including bulk requirements (i.e., minimum front,
side and rear yard setbacks, minimum frontage requirements, minimum building size and maximum building height) also add
to increased costs. Environmental regulations to protect wetlands, steep slopes, and potable surface and ground water
supplies, while important to protect natural resources, may also limit the availability of land for housing construction.

Dependent on property taxes to fund municipal and school facilities and operations, towns indirectly or directly engage in fiscal
zoning to maximize ratables (commercial and industrial uses) and minimize new development that is viewed as a cost burden,
i.e., school children. Many towns fear that higher density multi-family housing will add substantially more school children and
therefore increase tax burdens. There is also a perception that multi-family housing will negatively impact existing property
values. Another obstacle to developing higher density housing is the lack of public water and sanitary sewer systems in many
areas of the Lakes Region.

Opportunities
The following paragraphs describe opportunities to increase the supply of housing in the Lake Region through land use
regulations.

The 1997 New Hampshire Accessory Dwelling Units statute (RSA 674:71-73) states that municipalities with a zoning ordinance
“shall allow accessory dwelling units as a matter of right or by either conditional use permit pursuant to RSA 674:21 or by special
exception, in all zoning districts that permit single-family dwellings. One accessory dwelling unit shall be allowed without
additional requirements for lot size, frontage, space limitations, or other controls beyond what would be required for a single-
family dwelling without an accessory dwelling unit.” (RSA 674:72 Accessory Dwelling Units). The intent of the law is to allow
the development of more affordable housing without additional land development and extension of infrastructure. Currently,
29 municipalities in the Lakes Region have adopted regulations that permit ADU’s by right or by special exception.

70| Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Cottage/Tiny home development allows smaller single-family houses on a common lot with common open space. Eatonville,
Washington allows cottage housing in the same zones as single family detached dwelling, but at twice the density. Regulations
limit the size of the house compared to typical zoning that has a minimum floor area. This development maintains the single-
family characteristics that many towns desire while meeting housing needs of smaller households. This style of housing may
complement the historic types of housing constructed in the lake communities. Laconia and Andover have Tiny House
regulations.

(https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Eatonville/html/Eatonville19/Eatonville1906.htmlt).

Adaptive reuse of existing structures into residential dwellings is another means of providing housing without additional land
development and extension of infrastructure. Typically, the exterior and frame of the building are maintained, and the interior
redeveloped into one or more residential units. For example, historic mill buildings and former churches can be converted into
apartments or condominiums. In this case, form-based codes are ideally used to regulate this type of development. No
municipalities currently have this zoning in the Lakes Region.

As noted earlier in the report, the number of one and two person households has significantly increased in the region, many
of which are comprised of elderly persons who occupy larger homes. Home sharing is where, typically, a single person allows
another person to occupy an unused bedroom and share other parts of their home in accordance with an agreement. Like
dating apps, there must be a compatibility match between the homeowner and the sharer for the success of home sharing.
These arrangements have many benefits to both parties, especially senior citizens, who can have reduced housing costs,
assistance with household chores, and companionship and therefore, can remain in their home longer.

Zoning for multi-family housing will provide the opportunity for the development of housing serving segments of the
population who do not desire single-family housing. As noted earlier, multi-family housing requires water and sewer
infrastructure because of the higher density of the development. The development of large-scale multi-family development in
the Lake Region will be limited to those areas where such infrastructure is available or can be extended.

Mixed-Use zoning allows for the development of housing units with compatible commercial development on the same lot or
in the same structure. In the Lakes Region, apartment units are located above stores and restaurants in downtowns, such as
Plymouth and Laconia. Residential development in the downtown encourages pedestrian traffic that supports the downtown
economy. Currently, 19 municipalities in the Lakes Region have some form of mixed-use zoning.

71| Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Inclusionary zoning provides an incentive to developers, usually a density bonus, to provide a percentage set-aside of
affordable housing units, typically 15% to 20% of the total units. For example, in a 100-unit housing development, 80 homes
will be market rate, while 20 units will be affordable and deed restricted for low- and moderate-income households. In order
to provide the affordable units, these developments are larger multi-family housing developments with available
infrastructure. In the Lakes Region, Alton and Wolfeboro have inclusionary zoning.

Noncontiguous parcel clustering is a much simpler version of Transfer of Development Rights. A town would identify areas for
preservation and areas for development as an overlay. Each of these areas would be zoned for a base density of development.
A developer would have the option of purchasing one or more properties in each area and then transfer the development
potential of the property in the preservation area to the property in the receiving area. This concept allows a developer to
build at a higher density without increasing the overall development potential of the town, helps to eliminate sprawl
development and preserves open space. No municipalities in the Lakes Region currently have Transfer of Development Rights
zoning.

Towns may want to consider conditional zoning that would allow large employers of seasonal workers to construct housing
onsite or nearby for their employees. Such housing would allow these businesses to attract and retain employees, thereby
sustaining the important tourism sector of the region’s economy.

B. Employment Opportunities/Constraints

Barriers

The tourism industry is the Lakes Region’s economic driver and is dependent on seasonal and year-round employees to support
these businesses. The average tourism industry salary is $49,501 a year, with most jobs paying less.
(https://www.ziprecruiter.com/Salaries/Tourism-Salary--in-New-Hampshire.

While the worker shortage has affected employers statewide, the leisure and hospitality businesses may have more difficulty
attracting new employees because of the lower salaries and seasonal nature of the jobs. Because of the worker shortage, some
tourism employers have had to scale back hours of operation or limit the number of lodging rooms available.
(https://www.wmur.com/article/new-hampshire-tourism-seasonal-worker-shortage-2-7-22/39007107).

In a region where seasonal workers must compete with tourists, students and residents for lodging, the housing shortage has
exacerbated the worker shortage.

72| Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Opportunities

Housing is critical to attract and retain new workers. Many employers are offering higher wages, signing bonuses and other
similar incentives; however, these incentives may not solve the housing problem, especially for seasonal workers. There are a
number of innovative employer-supported initiatives that assist workers with their housing needs.

Employer Assisted Housing

Employer-Assisted Housing (EAH) refers to a variety of housing programs that support either housing rental or ownership, and
involve direct employer support, either through financing or development of residential units. The benefits of these programs
have significant positive impacts not only for employees and employers, but also for communities as a whole. For employees,
being able to live near their work results in decreased commute times and creates a greater sense of commitment and
investment to their company. For employers, this attractive benefit not only results in the increased ability to attract a qualified
workforce, but also leads to higher employee retention levels, thus reducing costs and increasing efficiency. For communities,
when people work and live in the same community, they tend to be more active and involved in civic and volunteer activities,
while also contributing to the local economic ecosystem by working, living, and spending all in one place. In addition, by
minimizing employees’ commute times, both traffic and air pollution are reduced.

There are many ways in which employers can participate in Employer-Assisted Housing Programs. Through a variety of options,
employers can either choose to subsidize housing costs for employees, or they can be directly involved in the development of
new units near their workplaces that are then rented or acquired by their employees. Examples of EAH programs in the form
of financial assistance include:

e Down payment or Closing Cost Assistance — Upon finding housing that suits their needs, employers will offer
monetary assistance either in the form “grant” or a non-interest loan (often due upon the sale or refinance
of the home) to help them cover their down payment or closing costs.

e Rent Subsidies — For those workers that don’t own a home, employers can offer a set monthly amount (rent
subsidy) to help cover their rental cost.

e Secondary (Gap) Financing — In this scenario, employers will offer secondary financing to compensate for an
amount that is still needed to be able to purchase a home. Here, employers will typically offer zero or low-
interest loans that are repayable upon the sale or refinance of the property.

73| Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Other examples of EAH programs include homebuyer education and moving cost assistance.
Examples of EAH programs in which the employer is directly involved in the development of new units for their employees
include:

e Cash Contributions — Here, employers may offer charitable contributions that will then be used towards the
development of workforce housing.

e Land Donation — Land donations can help achieve the development of workforce housing if an employer has
excess land that they are able to donate for this purpose.

e Construction Financing — Employers with access to capital can provide assistance in the form of low-interest
construction financing for workforce housing development or can also guarantee loans received through a
third party lender which would in turn help reduce the interest rate.

e Low-Income Housing Tax Credit Investment — This type of assistance, also referred to as the LIHTC, provides
tax incentives to encourage developers and investors (which can include employers) to construct or
renovate existing rental buildings. The program gives investors a dollar-for-dollar reduction in federal tax
liability in exchange for providing funding to affordable housing developments.

C. Physical Infrastructure and Services

The availability of infrastructure, such as sanitary sewer, potable water and access to transportation is critical for the
development of higher density housing. In addition, very low income households, subsidized housing occupants and special
needs populations will also need access to support services.

Barriers — Sewer and Water
Sanitary Sewer — In the Lakes Region, sanitary sewer is available in portions of 18 municipalities, while 13
municipalities have no sanitary sewer systems and depend on individual onsite septic systems.

74| Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Wastewater Treatment Facilities in the Lakes Region

Figure 53
- . Monthly
Facility Area Serviced Capacity (MGD)
Ashland Wastewater Ashland 1.6
Bristol Wastewater Bristol 0.5
Center Harbor Wastewater Center Harbor, Moultonborough 0.2
Winnipesaukee River Basin Project | Franklin, Laconia, Gilford, Belmont, 11.51
Center Harbor, Moultonborough,
Northfield, Tilton, Meredith, Sanbornton
New Hampton Village Precinct New Hampton 0.08
Ossipee Wastewater Ossipee 0.11
Plymouth Village Water & Sewer Holderness, Plymouth 0.7
District
Sandwich Wastewater Sandwich 0.02
Wolfeboro Wastewater Wolfeboro 0.6

Source: Lakes Region Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy, Table 2.2

There is one regional facility, Winnipesaukee River Basin Project, administered and managed by the New
Hampshire Department of Environmental Services that serves portions of ten towns. The four largest systems
have capacity to expand sewer service, while the smaller systems are limited with respect to expanding service.
These systems are regulated and monitored by the state to ensure compliance with volume and quality of the
effluent treated and discharged.

Houses outside of the sewer service areas are served by individual septic systems. The construction of these
systems is regulated by the state and can be costly depending on the soil types and depth of bedrock. The
homeowner is also responsible for the costs of properly maintaining the septic system. For a detailed map of
this infrastructure, see Appendix B — Quantitative Data: Water & Sewer Infrastructure.

Public Water Supply - There are 23 community water systems serving 20 municipalities in the Lakes Region. The
New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services classifies 20 of these community water systems as
major, 5 as large and 4 as small. As with sanitary sewer, these systems are also regulated by the NHDES

75| Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

concerning withdrawals and water quality treatment. Five community systems are served by surface water
supplies and the remaining 18 are served by ground water supplies. A full listing of the region’s community
water systems can be found in Appendix B — Quantitative Data: Infrastructure Around the Lakes Region.

In the areas outside of the community water systems, houses and business are served by private onsite wells.
Drilling for a well adds to the expense of building a house.

While the Lakes Region is water rich, these sources have been affected by drought.
(https://www.drought.gov/states/new-hampshire). Since 2010, New Hampshire experienced at least eight
periods of drought. In 2022, Barnstead, Moultonborough and Tilton had mandatory outdoor water use
restrictions due to abnormally dry conditions.
(https://www.des.nh.gov/sites/g/files/ehbemt341/files/documents/water-restrictions-list.pdf).

In determining capacity for development, towns should consider the capacity of their water systems, especially
during times of drought. The summer population of many towns surrounding the lakes is double and even triple
the year-round population, increasing pressure on the water supply systems during the time when drought
impacts are more severe.

In addition to capacity concerns, water quality may be impacted by contamination from a variety of sources
including urban stormwater runoff, leaking underground storage tanks, and spills.

Opportunities — Sewer and Water

Sewer and water infrastructure allow the development of higher density and potentially, more affordable, housing. In areas
with regional sewer and water systems, there may be opportunities for increasing the density of development, allowing for
infill development and/or expanding the utility service area to allow for the development of more higher density housing.

Outside of sewer service areas and water systems, there may be the potential to construct small package treatment facilities
or common septic systems to serve higher density development. The concern with these systems is the ongoing maintenance
and the cost of replacement if the systems fail. All wastewater treatment facilities are regulated by the state. Likewise, a small
community water system can be developed to serve higher density housing. Most likely, the source for these systems will be

76| Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

ground water. There needs to be care with the siting and maintenance of the smaller systems to ensure that they function
properly and have no negative impact on health or the environment.

Barriers — Transportation

The Lakes Region is heavily auto dependent with very limited fixed route bus service. Due to the low population densities and
rural character of the Lakes Region, expanding public transit in the Lakes Region is not viable. Paratransit services are limited
to a few towns in northern Grafton County. During the height of the summer tourism season, state and local roadways
experience congestion in popular areas. Walking and biking are primarily recreational. The area has several improved multi-
use paths, i.e., rail trails and bike routes. Sidewalks are limited to the more developed business districts in towns such as
Laconia, Meredith, and Plymouth.

Opportunities — Transportation

While mass transit options are limited, there are transportation alternatives that may benefit residents and workers within the
Lakes Region. Many of the transportation needs of the elderly and disabled are being served through a network of public and
private providers coordinated by Regional Coordinating Councils. By dialing 211, people can get linked up with services in their
area. Another option is promoting and/or subsidizing private ridesharing and delivery services which cater to the needs of the
senior and disabled population such as GoGoGrandparent.

For workers who are looking to economize on driving, the Lakes Region is served by three Park and Ride facilities, two
maintained by NH DOT along 1-93 and one maintained by the town of Belmont along NH Route 106. Employers may also
consider subsidizing shuttles or ride services for workers, especially for seasonal employees.

D. Affordable and Fair Housing

History of Fair Housing

In 1968, Congress passed the Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity Act. This Act originally prohibited housing discrimination on
the basis of race, color, national origin, religion and, in later years, was amended to also prohibit discrimination on the basis of
sex, familial status, and disability. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) is the primary agency
charged with implementing and enforcing this enabling legislation.

77| Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

New Hampshire also enacted its own housing discrimination law, the Law Against Discrimination (RSA 354-A) in 1965. State
protected classes include the seven classes protected at the federal level, as well as age, marital status, sexual orientation, and
the most recently added class of gender identity.

Even though these laws were created in order to protect and ensure that all class members
have equal access to housing, discrimination has still not been eradicated and continues to be
present in our nation, state, and region. For this reason, the identification and analysis of
barriers to equal access to housing is crucial for our region to be able to overcome housing
discrimination and segregation.

National Housing Assistance

While there are numerous housing assistance programs in the United States, the Fair Housing Initiatives Program (FHIP) and
Fair Housing Assistance Program (FHAP) administered through HUD were created to aid organizations focused on assistance
to those who believe they are not receiving their civil right to fair housing, or for organizations who work to enforce fair housing
laws.

The Fair Housing Initiatives Program (FHIP) was created to aid organizations and non-profits who assist individuals who believe
they have been discriminated against when trying to attain housing. Organizations that receive this type of funding partner
with HUD to ensure individuals are informed and provided services to make their complaints official, and have their claims
investigated. In addition to these services, FHIP has four initiatives (three of which provide funds) including:

1. The Fair Housing Organizations Initiative (FHOI) - Provides funding that allows for enforcing of fair
housing and education initiatives, as well as nationally encouraging the creation and growth of
organizations that serve typically underserved groups, especially those with disabilities.

2. The Private Enforcement Initiative (PEIl) - Provided for non-profit fair housing organizations to try and
prevent discriminatory housing practices by carrying out testing and enforcement activities.

3. The Education and Outreach Initiative (EOI) - Assists state and local government agencies and non-profits

in outreach to the public in explaining fair housing, equal opportunity in housing, and what housing
providers must do to comply with the Fair Housing Act.

78 |Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

4, The Administrative Enforcement Initiative (AEI) - Aids state and local governments in administration of
legislation that affirmatively furthers fair housing through implementation projects. No funds are
currently available for this program.

The Fair Housing Assistance Program (FHAP) provides funding to state and local agencies enforcing fair housing laws that are
in accordance with the Fair Housing Act. This funding is used to protect families and individuals who are subject to housing
discrimination. Funds support activities such as complaint processing, training, data and information systems implementation,
and other processes and projects.

Regional Housing Organizations

Lakes Region Community Developers. This nonprofit organization’s mission statement is “We create opportunities for the

Lakes Region to thrive by developing healthy homes, creating vibrant community assets, and engaging residents.”
(https://www.lrcommunitydevelopers.org/)

The LRCD has created 365 units of permanently affordable rental housing located in six communities. In addition to developing

affordable housing, LRCD provides supportive services and programs to residents and educational resources on topics of equity,

diversity, and inclusion.

(https://www.lrcommunitydevelopers.org/residentresources.html)

Laconia Housing. This nonprofit housing agency provides low income and elderly housing opportunities in units it owns through
federal subsidized housing programs and administers Housing Choice/Section 8 vouchers in the private rental market.

New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority. The New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority (NHHFA) is a statewide resource
for housing data and planning, for those interested in homeownership, and for those in need of housing assistance for both
rental and home buying. Housing data and information provided by this organization include rent and mortgage data,
demographic data, directories of assisted housing, HUD limits and allowances, and other housing data. The NHHFA provides
educational programs for homebuyers, as well as resources for renters. Another service the NHHFA provides is lending
programs for low- and moderate-income people for the financing of purchasing a home. The organization also holds
conferences and programs to present data and for housing experts to share information on assisted housing, the housing
market, and other relevant material. Since the organization was founded the NHHFA has helped more than 50,000 families
purchase homes and has financed more than 16,000 rental units.

79| Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

VIIl. Housing Toolbox: Resources for Meeting Local Housing Needs

There are several tools or strategies available to assist in ensuring the opportunity for a reliable supply of housing appropriate and
affordable to all segments of our population. Some have been mentioned earlier in this report.

Most of the tools are either a means of encouraging more efficient use of land or encouraging some sort of financial incentive, making
housing more affordable to develop, maintain, or purchase. Some classify these tools as addressing land use, regulatory, financial, or
public outreach issues. Frequently, one tool might address several of these issues. Just as each of the 31 communities in the Lakes
Region is distinctly different from each other, so too will some tools be more appropriate for certain communities than others.

Some of these tools are currently utilized in the region, some might be refined and be adapted to work better. Things to consider
include the existing and desired character of the community, areas of employment, infrastructure, and the capacity of the municipal
or other entity to oversee certain aspects of a program.

As part of this project, a Housing Toolbox has been developed for use by municipalities and is available at
https://nhhousingtoolbox.org/. The target audience is local planning boards. In a very readable format, the Toolbox provides the
following items for each of the nineteen recommended planning strategies:

J A description of the tool

J A description of how it can help encourage housing

J Steps on how to get started adopting and implementing the tool

J Points to consider about the tool and the process

] Issues addressed and related tools

J List of case studies (mainly from New Hampshire and New England)
] Additional resources

The strategies addressed in the Toolbox:

. Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs)

J Alternative small housing types

J Cluster housing — conservation subdivision
] Village plan alternative

80|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

. Alternative wastewater systems

o Inclusionary zoning

J Age-friendly neighborhoods

. Workforce Housing Ordinance

J Infill development

. Mixed use development

J Form-based codes

. Right-sized regulations

. Adaptive reuse

J Community Revitalization Tax Relief Incentive (79-E)
. Housing opportunity zones

J Planned Unit Developments (PUDs)

. Transfer of Development Rights (TDR)
. Tax Incentive Financing (TIF)

. Short-Term Rental (STR) regulations

8l|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

IX. Conclusion

Much like the rest of New Hampshire, in the Lakes Region the housing market is tight throughout and affordable housing is a particular
challenge. Many of the same trends in population, economic activity, wages, housing availability, and affordability apply. There are
some factors impacting housing and affordability that are particularly applicable in this part of the state.

The Lakes Region’s population continues to grow and tends to be older than most of the state with nearly a quarter of the population
over age 65. We have more 1- and 2-person (smaller) households than we did in 2010.

While the size of the labor force has changed little, the number of jobs has increased about 10%. Much of that increase has been in
the tourism industries of accommodations, food services, and retail trade, which are also among the lowest paying jobs.

There has been some growth in the number of housing units, however not as much as population has grown. About two-thirds of the
housing in the Lakes Region is considered vacant, including seasonal housing. Much of the housing that has become available in the
past decade is due to formerly vacant (seasonal) housing being converted to occupied housing.

The majority of housing units have three or more bedrooms. While this may be what is in demand for vacation properties, it is not in
line with the needs of the growing demographics of the area. The density of housing units is lower than the state average, with the
highest densities being in those communities with some sewer and water infrastructure.

In addition to a thriving formal hospitality industry, many housing units are also made available as short-term rental units for seasonal
accommodations. This practice can result in removing year-round rental units from the market thus limiting the available supply.

While median wages have been rising, the cost of housing has risen much more. From 2010 to 2020 the median income for renters
was up 14% while the cost of rent rose 21%. The median income for homeowners rose 28% while home sales prices were up 66%.

Through several versions of the Lakes Region Housing Needs Assessment stretching back nearly two decades, the message has been
consistent that there continues to be a need for more housing throughout the region. Not one-size-fits-all housing, not just single-
family homes, but a mix of housing options. A sufficient variety of housing allowing reasonable options for the single person or couple
starting out, for the growing family, and for those of us who might be downsizing later in life must be made available. Economically,
our communities and region need housing that is affordable to the couples and young families who are growing our workforce so we

82|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

can have people working in the hospitality industry, construction trades, and as teachers or caregivers in addition to engineers and
nurses.

In the appendices to this report, the regional figures for housing need are provided along with addressing municipal fair share based
on both the projected population change and the municipal share of the economy. The fair share modeling also indicates the number
of housing units that ought to be affordable. The Fair Share Production Model Report in Appendix A projects a need for 7,444 additional
units in the Lakes Region over the next 20 years — or an average of 372 new housing units per year — to accommodate population and
economic growth, with 42% of them considered affordable.

Under New Hampshire law, and as part of a local contribution to a healthy regional economy, municipalities have certain
responsibilities to fulfill related to housing. But just as there is not a one-size-fits-all housing solution, likewise there is not just one
strategy that every Lakes Region community should adopt to meet their fair share and for many communities, they may find it useful
to implement a mix of strategies. Some communities may have strategies in place to help them meet those housing responsibilities
over the next several years. Most may want to consider adopting certain tools from the Toolbox that can facilitate the development
of more affordable housing appropriate for the community needs and character.

Communities that do want to move forward with developing, adopting, and implementing one or more of the strategies from the

Toolbox can certainly utilize these tools as models. Member communities should contact LRPC regarding additional assistance that is
available for communities to address their housing issues.

83|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

LIST OF APPENDICES

Terms, Methodologies, Data

Appendix A Fair Share Analysis
Appendix B Quantitative Data:
e Population Projections (detailed)
e People Per Household, Lakes Region Communities
e Lakes Region Population by Race/Ethnicity
e Vacant Housing Types (including seasonal by community)
e Income-Restricted Housing
e Water & Sewer Infrastructure
e Infrastructure Around the Lakes Region

Appendix C  Existing Housing-Focused Entities/Services in the Region

84|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Appendix A — Fair Share Analysis: Report, Methodology, and Fair Share Table (2030 & 2040)

This appendix includes the Fair Share Analysis modelling conducted by Root Policy Research under contract to NH Office of Planning
and Development. This includes their report, the model methodology, an illustration of the use of the fair share numbers and sample
tools, a graphic showing the model components, and a table showing the results of the model for the Lakes Region for years 2030 and
2040, including fair share numbers for each municipality.

The table indicates that by 2040 the Lakes Region should be prepared to accommodate an additional 7,444 housing units or an average
of 372 new units per year. Approximately 42% of these should be affordable units. They are broken out further by type (owner/renter)

and by municipal fair share. Note that these figures apply to year-round housing only, not seasonal units.

Fair Share Housing Production Model Report

This report accompanies the Fair Share Housing Production Model that was created to assist New Hampshire’s Regional Planning
Commissions (RPCs) determine the housing production needed to meet current and future demand.

It begins with an overview of New Hampshire’s housing needs. It then discusses the state laws that provide the rationale for the
model’s approach.

New Hampshire’s Housing Needs

Like many areas in New England, New Hampshire has experienced a recent and very rapid increase in housing prices. Between 2019
and 2022, the median price of a sold home increased by $100,000—a 35% jump. The median cost of monthly rent reached $1,510 in
2022—an increase of $260 per month, or 21%, in three years.

Income growth has failed to keep pace with rising housing costs. Since 2000, median home values rose by 111% and rents by 94%
compared to a 73% increase in median income.

Homes for sale and for rent are very hard to find in the current market as the state’s housing vacancy rate is below 1%. Low vacancy

rates depress the ability of households to move into housing that best meets their needs for accessing employment, to achieve
homeownership, to accommodate a growing family, and to respond to aging.

85|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Currently,
1. If only 10% of the state’s low-income renters were looking to move—about 7,400 renters—they would have
about 350 units from which to choose. The likelihood that they would find an affordable, vacant unit is about
5%.
2. If only 10% of the state’s renters with income of 61 to 100% AMI were looking to buy—about 3,700 renters—

they would have about 550 units from which to choose. The likelihood that they would find an affordable unit
for sale is about 15%.

The state’s lowest income renters face a severe shortage of affordable units. An estimated 3.5% of New Hampshire’s housing units
have a contract or are managed by an entity that ensures their affordability. This supply is far short of need: an estimated 23,000
renters need more affordable units or rental assistance.

A cost burden is created when households pay more than 30% of their income in housing cost which has historically been very high
for the state’s lowest income owners and renters. The prevalence of cost burden has widened to include moderate income renters —
60% of renters with income of $35,000 to $50,000 are burdened and 25% of renters with income of $50,000 to $75,000 are burdened.

Rates of cost burden are higher among those unemployed or out of the labor force (45% are burdened), but they are almost as high
among those working in the arts, entertainment, recreation, accommodation, and food services industries—essential industries for
the state’s tourism and recreation sector.

The shortage of affordable homeownership units has led to a decline in homeownership in the state. Middle aged (ages 35 to 44)
adults experienced the largest decline in homeownership between 2010 and 2020, with rates dropping from 74% to 68%. Households
with income of between $75,000 and $100,000 also saw a steep decline in ownership, dropping from 84% to 75%. The lack of
affordable homeownership products requires renters to rent longer, limiting supply, especially for the lowest income renters who are
less competitive in the market.

Additional public funding can realistically only address a proportion of needs. Housing needs and future housing demand should be
addressed through a combination of affordable unit production and housing cost assistance.

86|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

State-level modeling on production needs estimates that between 2020 and 2040, approximately 88,400 units will be needed to meet
household growth demand and bring the state’s housing market into balance. This is in addition to units needed to respond to seasonal
and second home demand.

As of 2022, to stabilize the housing market and restore it to a functional vacancy rate (5% for rental units and 2% for ownership units),
10,905 additional rental units are needed, and 12,764 ownership units are needed.

This report/model provides guidance for the housing production needed to address demand.

New Hampshire Workforce Housing Statute
New Hampshire’s Workforce Housing Law, RSA 674, requires every New Hampshire community to provide “reasonable and realistic
opportunities” for the development of workforce housing.

That law codified the principles established in the 1991 Britton v. Chester case, which challenged the constitutionality of the Town of
Chester’s zoning ordinances. In that case, the state Supreme Court held that when exercising its authority to regulate the use of land
through zoning, every state jurisdiction must provide a reasonable and realistic opportunity for the development of affordable
housing. The Court stated that regional needs are relevant in determining a jurisdiction’s proportionate or “fair share” of affordable
housing—although the court did not define fair share.

Workforce housing is defined by the law as:

Ownership housing—affordable to households with income equal to or less than 100% of the Area Median Income (AMI) for a 4-
person household as published by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for the MSA or county in which the
jurisdiction is located.

Renter housing—affordable to households with income equal to or less than 60% of the Area Median Income (AMI) for a 3-person
household as published by HUD for the MSA or county in which the jurisdiction is located.

Affordable means housing costs, including utilities and combined mortgage loan debt, property taxes, and required insurance, that do
not exceed 30% of a household’s gross annual income.

87|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Housing developments that exclude minor children from more than 20% of the units, or in which more than 50% of the units have
fewer than 2 bedrooms, do not constitute workforce housing.

The Workforce Housing Law does not define how much workforce housing must be developed in a jurisdiction, nor does it prescribe
a method for estimating that number. Instead, the law provides guidance which was utilized in developing the Fair Share Housing
Production Model in 2022 described in the remainder of this report. That model is an update to the 2014 model, and is meant to be
used by the state’s RPCs as they advise their member jurisdictions on housing production needs and to raise awareness of the need
for affordable and workforce housing.

Fair Share Housing Production Model
Overview of Approach

The Fair Share Housing Production Model (“model’”) projects the number of housing units, by tenure and Area Median Income (AMI)
threshold, that jurisdictions should allow or accommodate to meet projected population and employment demand and to support a
more balanced housing market in New Hampshire.

The employment component is critical to support economic stabilization and growth, especially in the state’s small towns and rural
areas. A model based solely on demographic projections—which are based on historical trends—would drive housing demand into
urban areas and away from rural areas that are aging. This would result in rural economies that cannot support the needs of aging
residents, tourism, and recreation activity, including second and vacation homeowners, and economic development.

Methodology

The model begins with projected growth for 2025, 2030, 2035, and 2040 at the jurisdiction level based on demographic projections
that were conducted by RLS Demographics (State of New Hampshire State, County, and Municipal Population Projections: 2020-2050,
Robert Scardamalia RLS Demographics, Inc. and New Hampshire Department of Business and Economic Affairs).

The RLS demographic projections included projected numbers of people (not households) by age cohort. To form residents into
households, the model applies a “headship ratio,” which converts people into households based on the share of people to households,
by age cohort, in 2020. The age cohort considerations are important to adjust for the variance in household sizes and formation
through lifecycles.

88| Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Component 1—Planning for Projected Household Growth. The first part of the model allocates a share of projected household growth
to housing production; the base model uses 50%. Households include all types of people projected to live in a jurisdiction: retirees,
remote workers, unemployed people, and others.

To separate households into renters and owners, the model holds constant the statewide 2020 ownership rate. The statewide
ownership rate is used to fairly distribute rental housing among regions and avoid replicating past exclusionary development patterns.

The model determines the share of owner and renter households that fall below and above the Area Median Income (AMI) categories
of 60% AMI for a 3-person household for renters and 100% AMI for a 4-person household for owners, with AMI defined by the regional
AMI. This is consistent with RSA 672:1.

Component 2—Planning for Employment Growth. The second part of the model allocates the remaining 50% of projected household
growth weighted toward workforce housing needs, embracing the premise that workers should be allowed to live throughout a labor
market area.

There are two parts to Component 2.

A. The state’s Workforce Housing Statute states that: “/In every municipality that exercises the power to adopt land
use ordinances and regulations, such ordinances and regulation shall provide reasonable and realistic
opportunities for the development of workforce housing.” To satisfy this clause, the model considers the share
of the state’s employment that exists in the Labor Market Area (LMA) in which a jurisdiction is part.

B. “A municipality’s existing housing stock shall be taken into consideration in determining its compliance...”. The
model then reapportions housing production to jurisdictions based on their share of the defined LMA housing
units. The model effectively says that all jurisdictions should contribute to the workforce housing needed for a
functioning labor market. Those that have not contributed to historical growth must catch up to a reasonable
vacancy rate and by building housing for permanent residents.

A balanced approach. We recommend weighting Components 1 and 2 equally for two reasons:

89 |Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

° Weighting household growth too heavily would perpetuate the state’s trends of declining workforce which is
linked to lack of affordable housing.

. Weighting household growth too heavily would create labor markets where older adults exist without the
workforce needed for them to age and receive adequate health care, home care, and related supportive
services.

Therefore, the model assumes an equal balance between household growth and workforce growth.

The model also balances housing needed to accommodate future growth with existing needs and accounts for deficiencies in housing
provision. It includes a factor to bring the state’s housing vacancy rate up to a functioning level. This reflects current need, particularly
the need for units in high demand, low vacancy jurisdictions. It also corrects for past exclusionary practices that have resulted in a very
low supply of workforce housing units.

The model does not factor in housing in poor condition because public data is unavailable. As such, Regional Planning Commissions
should work with jurisdictions to increase their housing production numbers to account for units that are inhabitable — not appropriate

for workforce housing and/or will be demolished.

How To Use the Housing Production Numbers

The output from the model is the number of housing units that are needed to accommodate population growth and support
employment growth and return New Hampshire’s housing market to a stable and functioning state. Housing unit numbers are
provided for five-year increments in 2025, 2030, 2035, and 2040. (Note — For simplicity this LRPC report only includes the data for
2030 and 2040, figures for 2025 and 2035 are available upon request.) Stabilization of the housing market is achieved through adding
production to achieve a 5% rental vacancy and a 2% ownership vacancy rate. This stabilization factor is smoothed throughout the 2020
to 2040 period to best reflect the cyclical nature of housing development (v. front loading the units needed as of 2022).

The model presents cumulative housing production numbers for 2025, 2030, 2035, and 2040.
These housing production numbers are presented for all owners, and for owners below and above 100% AMI for a 4-person household;
and for all renters and renters below and above 60% AMI for a 3-person household. The AMI is the regional AMI for the RPCs, which

was developed for RPC use in regional housing needs assessments and for this model. It is based on the AMlIs published by the U.S.

0 |Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). In sum, the regional AMlI is created through a weighted average of the HUD
AM I assigned to each town in a region and occupied housing units as a share of total occupied housing units in the region.

Jurisdictions and Regional Planning Commissions (RPCs) should use these numbers as guidance for accommodating and responding to
development interests. It is important to note that RPCs are not required to do fair share analyses; they undertake this exercise to
support their member jurisdictions. Housing production numbers are what communities need to allow and accommodate should a
developer propose to build them. There are many factors that will determine if/when units get built (e.g., developer interest,
developer financing, building costs, economic development).

RPCs and communities should understand that the housing production model is not a perfect substitute for current conditions, and
that other factors and data points should be taken into consideration—including current vacancy rates, wait lists in assisted housing
developments, and current market data regularly provided by New Hampshire housing—when development applications are
evaluated.

Hypothetical case:

Community X reviews the Fair Share Tables and notes that it should be prepared to accommodate demand for 100 units by 2025 and
299 units by 2040. Of these units, 200 should be for owners, with about half affordable to households with income of 100% AMI and
less. Another 100 should be for renters, with 55% affordable to renters with income of 60% AMI and less.

Community X looks to the Development Capacity Test tab and finds that it has plenty of capacity to accommodate about 95% of the
units, but may need to consider some changes in density to allow for the units on land that has water and sewer connections.
Increasing the allowable density to 8 units per acre in areas near Main Street appears to be a solution that would not only allow for
needed housing production, it would also meet community goals of conservation and cost-efficient development.

A developer approaches Community X with an application. This community agrees to upzone the developer’s parcels with the
condition that the units would be affordable to <100% AMI owner and <60% AMI renter households.

91|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

92 |Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Fair Share Table for Lakes Region Municipalities: 2030 & 2040

2030 New Below | Above 2040 New Below | Above

Units Owners | 100 % 100% | Renters |Below 60|Above 60] Units | Owners | 100 % 100% | Renters |Below 60|Above 60
Town Total 2030 AMI AMI 2030 % AMI | % AMI Total 2040 AMI AMI 2040 % AMI | % AMI
Alexandria town 69 46 24 22 23 9 14 102 66 35 32 35 14 21
Alton town 219 149 52 97 70 31 39 317 213 75 139 104 45 59
Andover town 80 54 25 29 26 11 15 118 78 36 42 40 16 23
Ashland town 84 56 31 26 28 10 18] 124 81 a4 37 43 16 27
Barnstead town 164 112 53 59 52 14 38 236 159 75 84 77 20 57
Belmont town 244 166 83 83 77 28 49 352 237 118 119 115 41 74
Bridgewater town 54 36 17 19 18 5 13 80 52 25 27 27 8 19
Bristol town 147 98 50 48 49 20 29 217 142 72 70 75 31 44
Center Harbor town 43 29 11 18 14 1 12 63 42 16 26 21 2 19
Danbury town 43 29 15 14 14 5 9 64 42 22 20 22 8 13
Effingham town 62 42 19 23 20 8 11 82 55 24 31 27 11 16
Franklin city 342 230 126 104 112 32 80 505 334 183 151 171 49 122
Freedom town 98 66 38 29 32 12 19 136 90 51 39 45 16 29
Gilford town 389 264 98 166 125 33 92 565 378 140 238 187 48 138
Gilmanton town 135 92 38 54 43 18 24 195 131 54 77 64 27 37
Hebron town 32 21 10 12 11 2 8 47 31 14 17 16 4 13
Hill town 41 28 13 15 13 5 9 61 40 18 22 21 7 14
Holderness town 88 59 27 32 29 7 22 129 85 38 46 45 11 34
Laconia city 812 552 235 317 260 84 177 1,180 790 336 454 390 123 267
Meredith town 274 186 89 98 87 40 48| 397 266 127 140 130 58 72
Moultonborough town 233 158 74 84 75 13 62 319 212 99 114 106 17 90
New Hampton town 86 59 30 29 27 11 16| 125 84 43 41 41 17 24
Northfield town 181 122 60 62 59 23 36 268 177 88 89 90 35 56
Ossipee town 169 115 70 45 54 31 23 226 151 90 61 75 40 35
Plymouth town 227 151 78 74 76 36 40 334 218 112 106 116 55 61
Sanbornton town 145 98 44 55 46 11 35 210 141 63 78 69 16 53
Sandwich town 66 45 19 25 21 3 18] 89 60 26 33 30 4 26
Tamworth town 122 83 46 36 39 15 24 165 110 62 48 55 20 35
Tilton town 178 121 68 53 57 18 39 258 173 97 76 85 26 59
Tuftonboro town 109 74 37 38 35 7 28 148 99 48 51 49 9 40
Wolfeboro town 248 169 80 89 79 26 53 333 222 104 119 111 35 76
Total 5,183 3,512 1,658 1,854 1,671 569 1,102| 7,444 4,962 2,334 2,629 2,482 829 1,653

93|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Appendix B — Quantitative Data (tables and figures/graphs not included in narrative of plan)

Population and Projections (detailed)

Population and Projections
Census ODP Projections
Municipality 2000 2010 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 2050

Alexandria 1,329 1,613 1,776 1,851 1,911 1,939 1,943 1,930 1,906
Altan 4,502 5,250 5,894 5,141 8,350 5,455 5,510 6,508 5,486
Andover 2108 2,371 2406 2493 2567 2616 2638 2640 2,635
Ashland 1,955 2,076 1,938 2,020 2,085 2,115 2121 2,106 2,080
Barnstead 3,886 4,593 4,915 5121 5,295 5,391 5,429 5,427 5,408
Belmaont 6716 7,356 7314 7520 7,880  B022 BO79 8076 8,048
Bridgewater 974 1,083 1,160 1,208 1,248 1,266 1,269 1,260 1,245
Bristal 3,033 3,054 3,244 3,382 3,490 3,541 3.550 3,525 3,481
Center Harbor 906 108 1040 1084 1120 1141 1149 1148 1,144
Danbury 1,071 1,164 1,250 1,216 1,251 1,275 1,286 1,287 1,285
Effingham 1,273 1,465 1,691 1,765 1,823 1854 1854 1,832 1,799
Franklin 8,405  ®477 8741 2578 9,242 0419 5498 9507 94920
Freedom 1,303 1,483 1,689 1,763 1,821 1,852 1,852 1,879 1,796
Gilford 5,303 7,126 7,639 8,021 8,295 8444 8,504 8,501 5,472
Gilmanton 3,060 3777 3945 4110 4250 4327 4357 4356 4341
Hebron 459 602 632 659 680 &80 892 G687 678
Hill 592 1,089 1,017 1,054 1,085 1,106 1,115 1,116 1,114
Holderness 1930 2,108 2004 208 2156 21838 21983 2177 2,150
Laconia 16,411 15,851 16871 17,577 18,177 18504 18635 18628 18,565
Meredith 5,943 6,241 5,662 5,941 7,178 7,307 7.359 7.356 7,331
Moultonbaorough 4484 4044 4918 5133 5302 5392 5392 5327 5231
Mew Hampton 1,950 7,165 2,377 2,476 2,561 2,607 2,526 2,624 2,616
Northfield 4,548 4,829 4,872 5,045 5,197 57297 5,341 5,346 5,337
Dssipee 4211 4,345 4372 4563 4714 4794 4793 4735 4650
Plymouth 5,892 5,980 65,632 5,966 7188 7,294 7,312 7,260 7,170
Sanbarnton 2,581 7,966 3,026 3,153 3,260 3,319 3,342 3,341 3,330
Sandwich 1286 1326 1466 1530 1,581 1607 1607 1588 1,558
Tamwarth 2,510 2,856 2,812 2935 3,032 3,083 3083 3045 2,991
Tilton 3,477 3,567 3,962 4128 4,268 4346 4376 4,375 4,360
Tuftonboro 2148 2,387 2467 2575 2680 2,705 2705 2,672 2,624
Wolfebaro 6083 6,269 6416 5,595 6917 7,035 7034 6943 G824

Total - Lakes Region 112,320 119,725 125,258 130,294 134,586 136,939 137,643 137,157 136,148

Sources: US Censzus Bureaw, 2020; State of New Hampshire Stats, County, and Municipal

Population Projections: 2020-2050, NH Office of Planning & Development, 2022

94 |Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

People Per Household, Lakes Region Communities

Total
Town Households

Alexandria 727 14.7% 56.8% 13.5% 15.0%
Alton 2087 14.7% 52.1% 17.2% 16.0%
Andover 1004 21.1% 44.3% 18.0% 16.5%
Ashland 930 36.2% 33.9% 9.6% 20.3%
Barnstead 1804 20.1% 39.6% 19.7% 20.6%
Belmont 3054 25.5% 43.1% 11.8% 19.6%
Bridgewater 474 30.4% 51.9% 7.4% 10.3%
Bristol 1197 28.9% 39.6% 15.5% 16.0%
Center Harbor 412 19.2% 59.5% 13.3% 8.0%
Danbury 589 23.8% 53.3% 7.3% 15.6%
Effingham 583 18.4% 38.4% 21.8% 21.4%
Franklin 3940 32.6% 38.5% 15.9% 13.0%
Freedom 572 29.5% 42.8% 6.5% 21.2%
Gilford 3005 29.0% 34.2% 14.2% 22.6%
Gilmanton 1441 26.6% 31.2% 13.3% 29.0%
Hebron 273 23.8% 58.6% 6.6% 11.0%
Hill 334 21.3% 51.5% 16.8% 10.5%
Holderness 826 22.3% 49.4% 8.0% 20.3%
Laconia 7086 32.9% 37.5% 13.3% 16.3%
Meredith 3099 36.5% 41.0% 11.1% 11.4%
Moultonborough 1799 21.1% 48.2% 16.5% 14.2%
New Hampton 923 21.5% 42.6% 20.4% 15.6%
Northfield 1879 22.7% 37.3% 19.6% 20.4%
Ossipee 1830 32.0% 47.6% 10.2% 10.2%
Plymouth 2375 34.4% 37.1% 14.3% 14.2%
Sanbornton 1146 20.2% 44.9% 10.8% 24.1%
Sandwich 843 45.1% 42.0% 4.3% 8.7%
Tamworth 1315 24.8% 40.9% 15.8% 18.5%
Tilton 1519 34.2% 36.7% 19.1% 10.0%
Tuftonboro 961 25.3% 54.9% 10.0% 9.8%
Wolfeboro 3046 29.9% 51.1% 9.7% 9.3%
LRPC 51073 28.2% 42.0% 13.8% 16.0%

Source: US Census Bureau ACS, 2020

95|Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Lakes Region Population by Race/Ethnicity

2000 2010 2020 |
Total Population 112,320 119,725 125,258
White Alone, Not Hispanic 97.2% 96.0% 92.2%
Racial or Hispanic/ Latino Minorities 2.8% 4.0% 7.8%
Hispanic or Latino of Any Race 0.7% 1.2% 1.9%
Black or African American alone, Not Hispanic or
Latino 0.3% 0.4% 0.5%
American Indian & Alaska Native alone, Not
Hispanic or Latino 0.2% 0.2% 0.2%
Asian alone, Not Hispanic or Latino 0.5% 0.9% 0.9%
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander alone,
Not Hispanic or Latino 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Some Other Race alone, Not Hispanic or Latino 0.1% 0.1% 0.4%
Two or More Races, Not Hispanic or Latino 1.0% 1.2% 3.9%

Source: US Census Bureau, 2020

9% |Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Vacant Housing Types, Including Seasonal by Community

020
O O
0 g aca % Tota For Sale
0 aca Rentals or Sold Seasonal Other
Alexandria 941 262 28% 0% 0% 95% 5%
Alton 4,309 2,343 54% 0% 0% 95% 5%
Andover 1,132 171 15% 0% 2% 89% 9%
Ashland 1,352 453 34% 4% 0% 91% 6%
Barnstead 2,416 687 28% 0% 0% 89% 11%
Belmont 3,614 611 17% 8% 7% 75% 10%
Bridgewater 948 414 44% 6% 2% 86% 6%
Bristol 2,495 1,179 47% 7% 2% 85% 5%
Center Harbor 771 305 40% 0% 4% 92% 4%
Danbury 691 93 13% 0% 0% 78% 22%
Effingham 970 362 37% 5% 1% 83% 11%
Franklin 4,046 501 12% 31% 9% 31% 29%
Freedom 2,062 1,239 60% 0% 1% 97% 2%
Gilford 5,175 2,181 42% 0% 0% 94% 5%
Gilmanton 2,152 715 33% 0% 3% 88% 9%
Hebron 604 374 62% 0% 0% 91% 9%
Hill 499 96 19% 0% 0% 88% 13%
Holderness 1,428 751 53% 1% 4% 85% 11%
Laconia 10,275 3,153 31% 8% 2% 83% 7%
Meredith 4,742 2,107 44% 3% 0% 93% 3%
Moultonborough 4,910 3,116 63% 1% 3% 94% 2%
New Hampton 1,175 158 13% 0% 0% 70% 30%
Northfield 2,006 112 6% 44% 6% 0% 50%
Ossipee 2,982 1,269 43% 0% 10% 83% 7%
Plymouth 2,310 654 28% 19% 6% 69% 6%
Sanbornton 1,695 591 35% 0% 4% 91% 6%
Sandwich 1,073 451 42% 0% 4% 94% 2%
Tamworth 1,883 750 40% 0% 0% 94% 6%
Tilton 1,928 355 18% 0% 6% 56% 37%
Tuftonboro 2,390 1,369 57% 1% 1% 93% 4%
Wolfeboro 4,400 1,801 41% 5% 9% 73% 13%
Total 77,374 28,623 37% 3% 3% 87% 7%

Source: US Census Bureau ACS, 2020

97 |Page



Income Restricted Housing

Income-Restricted Housing in Franklin

(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

. Total Financing Rental
Community Property Name Type Units Program Assistance
New Franklin
Frankli Elderl LIHT i N
ranklin Apartments (36) derly 36 C Section 8 NC
. New Franklin . .
Franklin Elderly 75 Section 8 NC Section 8 NC
Apartments (75)
Franklin Riverside Housing Elderly | 40 HUD 202 Section 8 SR
for the Elderly
Franklin 336 Central Street Family 17 unknown Section 8 Mod
Rehab
Franklin Bow Glen Family | 10 HOME
Transitional Housing
. . LIHTC, HOME,
Franklin Cottage Hotel Family 6 Operating Fund
Franklin Forest Hill Family 40 RHS 515 RHS. Rental
Assistance
Franklin Franklin Knolls Family 48 RHS 515 RHS. Rental
Assistance
. Franklin Light & . LIHTC, HOME,
Franklin Power Mill Family 4 | cDBG, AHF, 811
Franklin Franklin Plantation Family 36 RHS 515 RHS. Rental
Assistance
Franklin Franklin Woods Family 36 LIHTC Section 8 NC
Income-Restricted Housing in Laconia
. Total Financing Rental
P N T
Community roperty Name ype Units Program Assistance
Laconia Sunrise House Elderly 16 HTF, AHF
Laconia Sunrise Towers Elderly 98 HUD PH
Laconia Tavern Apartments Elderly 50 LIHTC, HOME
Laconia Victoria Woods Elderly 28 RHS 515, LIHTC RHS. Rental
Assistance
Laconia Avery Hill Family 14 HOME, LIHTC
. Laconia Neighborhood . LIHTC, FAF,
Laconia Initiatives Family 19 CDBG

98 |Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

TE Bonds,
Laconia Lakeport Square Family 75 542[C], LIHTC, Section 8
HOME(GHP)
Laconia Mechanic Street Family 6 LIHTC
School
Laconia Millview Family 18 LIHTC
Laconia Normandin Square Family 60 AHF, LIHTC
. Perley Pond . TE Bonds .
Laconia Townhomes Family 35 w/Risk Sharing Section 8 NC
. . . . LIHTC, CDBG,
Laconia Pine Hill Family 18 HOME
CRF w/Riskin
Laconia Rivers Edge Family 32 Sharing, HOME,
LIHTC
LIHTC, TE Bonds
Laconia Wingate Apartments Family 100 w/Risk Sharing, Section 8
Operating Fund
Laconia Scott Mill
Income-Restricted Housing in other Lakes Region communities
. Total Financing Rental
Community Property Name Type Units Program Assistance
Alton Prospect View Elderly 26 HUD 202 Section 8 NC
Ashland Common Man Elderly | 28 | HUD 202, PRAC
Commons
Ashland Highland Apartments Elderly 24 RHS 515 RHS. Rental
Assistance
Ames Brook . CDBG, HOME,
Ashland Apartments Family | 40 LIHTC, FHLBB
RHS R I
Ashland Ledgewood Estates Family 40 RHS 515 S enta
Assistance
Belmont Housing for .
Belmont Elderly 40 HUD202, PRAC Section 8 NC
The Elderly
B -
Belmont elmont Village Family | 30 RHS 515 RHS Rental
Apartments Assistance
. . AHF, HOME, RHS Rental
Belmont Maple Hill Acres Family 32 LIHTC, RHS 515 Assistance
Belmont Orchard Hill Family | 32 RHS 515 RHS Rental
Assistance

99 |Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

. . LIHTC,
Belmont Sandy Ledge Housing Family 11 Operating Fund
Bristol Bristol Town Square Elderly 16 HFDA /8 SR Section 8 SR
Bristol Country Manor Elderly 20 HFDA /8 NC Section 8 NC
Bristol Riverview Village Elderly 19 HUD 202, PRAC
Bristol Newfound Meadows | Family | 28 | RHS515,LIHTC | o Rental
Assistance
. LIHTC, CDBG,
Bristol Niwzor‘t‘::im‘;er Family | 32 | CHR/FHARisk
P Share, 811
Gilford Gilford Village Knolls Elderly 22 RHS. >15, RHS. Rental
Operating Fund Assistance
. , . AHF, LIHTC, RHS RHS Rental
Gilford Gilford Village Knolls Il Elderly 24 515, TE Bonds Assistance
Gilford Gilford V'::Tge Knolls 1 Eldery | 24 LIHTC, HOME
Gilford Breton Woods Family 36 RHS 515 RHS. Rental
Assistance
Meredith Hillside Apartments Elderly 50 HFDA/ 8NC Section 8 NC
Meredith Deer Run Apartments Family 25 RHS 515 RHS. Rental
Assistance
. . . LIHTC, RHS 515, RHS Rental
Meredith Pinecrest Apartments Family 32 HOME Assistance
RHS R I
Meredith Red Gate Lane Family | 32 RHS 515 > Renta
Assistance
HOME R
Moultonborough | West Wynde Center Elderly 12 HUD 202, HOME 0 . .ent
Restrictions
Northfield Northfield Village | ¢y | 36 RHS 515 Section 8
Apartments
Mountainview TE Bonds w/Risk
Ossipee Apartments Elderly 24 Sharing, LIHTC, Section 8 NC
P HOME(GHP)
Ossipee Ossipee Village Famil 24 | LIHTC, HOME
P Apartments ¥ !
Plymouth Pemi Commons Elderly 16 HUD 202, PRAC
Plymouth Plymouth Terrace Elderly 30 LIHTC, RHS 515 RHS. Rental
Assistance
Plymouth Prince Haven Elderly 50 515 /8 NC Section 8 NC

100 | Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Plymouth Plymouth Apartments Family 66 LIHTC, RHS 515 RHS. Rental
Assistance
. LIHTC, HOME, RHS Rental
Plymouth Plymouth Woods Family 24 RHS 515 Assistance
LIHTC, HTF,
HOME, FHLBB
Special AHP Grant;
Plymouth Boulder Point P 30 NBRC Grant:
Needs
Permanent
Debt, TE Bonds
(w/Rs Const.)
Sandwich Spokefield Common 10 HUD 202 Section 8 NC
. TE Bonds w/Risk .
Tamworth Remick Acres Elderly 24 Sharing, LIHTC Section 8 NC
Tamworth Chocorua Woods Special 15 HUD 202 Section 8 NC
Needs
New Franklin
Til E [ HFD N i N
ilton Apartments (60) Iderly 60 FDA /8 NC Section 8 NC
. . HOME, LIHTC, RHS Rental
Tilton Lochmere Meadows Family 28 TCAP, RHS 515 Assistance
Tilton Lochmere Meadows Eamil 19 HOME, LIHTC, RHS Rental
Phase Il y RHS 515 Assistance
AHF, LIHTC .
Tilton Mill Knoll Family 17 RGGI(GHP), Se“g;]:bmd
HOME
Wolfeboro Christian Ridge Elderly 32 RHS 515, HFDA Section 8
Wolfeboro The Ledges Elderly 45 RHS 515 RHS. Rental
Assistance
Wolfeboro Harriman Hill Family 24 HOME, LIHTC
Wolfeboro Harriman Hill Phase Il Family 24 HOME, LIHTC
Wolfeboro Hope House Special 7 FAF
Needs

101 |Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Water & Sewer Infrastructure in the Lakes Region

102 |Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Infrastructure Around the Lakes Region

System Name Town Population Servic_e System

Served Connections Category
ALTON WATER WORKS ALTON 1750 703 LARGE CWS
ANDOVER VILLAGE DIST ANDOVER 650 120 MAJOR CWS
ASHLAND WATER DEPT ASHLAND 1500 570 MAJOR CWS
PEU/LOCKE LAKE BARNSTEAD 2238 895 MAJOR CWS
BELMONT WATER DEPT BELMONT 1612 645 LARGE CWS
BELMONT WATER DEPT/NORTH BELMONT 150 50 LARGE CWS
BRISTOL WATER WORKS BRISTOL 3400 1360 MAJOR CWS
FRANKLIN WATER WORKS FRANKLIN 7000 2422 MAJOR CWS
FREEDOM VILLAGE WATER PRECINCT FREEDOM 163 67 MAJOR CWS
ABENAKI WATER/GILFORD VILLAGE GILFORD 190 39 SMALL CWS
GUNSTOCK ACRES VILLAGE DIST GILFORD 1440 576 LARGE CWS
HILL WATER WORKS HILL 350 139 LARGE CWS
LACONIA WATER WORKS LACONIA 17000 6800 MAJOR CWS
MEREDITH WATER DEPT MEREDITH 3750 1216 MAJOR CWS
PARADISE SHORES MOULTONBOROUGH 2040 815 MAJOR CWS
NEW HAMPTON VILLAGE PCT NEW HAMPTON 600 125 MAJOR CWS
TILTON NORTHFIELD WATER DIST NORTHFIELD 2500 975 MAJOR CWS
CARROLL COUNTY COMPLEX OSSIPEE 258 53 SMALL CWS
OSSIPEE WATER DEPT OSSIPEE 850 336 MAJOR CWS
PLYMOUTH VLG WATER AND SEWER PLYMOUTH 6700 1180 MAJOR CWS
TAMWORTH WATER WORKS TAMWORTH 265 100 SMALL CWS
LOCHMERE VILLAGE DIST TILTON 405 162 SMALL CWS
WOLFEBORO WATER AND SEWER WOLFEBORO 5750 2300 MAJOR CWS

Source: NH Department of Environmental Services

https://www4.des.state.nh.us/DESOnestop/PWSContacts.aspx

MAJOR CWS (>1500 POP OR SURFACE SUPPLY)
LARGE CWS (>1000 POP OR FIRE PROTECTION)
SMALL CWS (<1000 POP & NO FIRE PROTECT)

103|Page




(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Appendix C — Existing Housing-Focused Entities/Services in the Region

i Mental health and substance abuse treatment facility locations

1. SAMHSA 2021 Directory of Mental Health Treatment Facilities:
https://www.samhsa.gov/data/sites/default/files/reports/rpt34657/National Directory MH fa
cilities 2021.pdf

2. SAMSHA 2020 Directory of Drug and Alcohol Abuse Treatment Facilities:
https://www.samhsa.gov/data/sites/default/files/reports/rpt23267/National Directory SA fac
ilities.pdf

ii. DHHS Community Support and Housing Resources Guide:

1. https://www.nhcarepath.dhhs.nh.gov/partner-resources/documents/community-support-
housing-resource.pdf

104 |Page



(DRAFT) LAKES REGION HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Key Source Documents

A. 2020 State Al - findings applicable to the region’s towns and cities (Part Il, Section B and Appendix): Demographic
Information (pages 29 — 68, A-01) (May 2021)

B. HUD 2021 — 2025 State Consolidated Plan - data and findings applicable to the region’s communities

C. Council on Housing Stability 2021 — 2024 Strategic Plan (June 2021)

D. Council on Housing Stability 2021 Annual Report (November 2021)

E. SB 43 Commission to Study Barriers to Increased Density of Land Development in New Hampshire, “Density Commission”
(2019 - 2020)

F. Governor’s Housing Task Force Final Report (October 2019)
G. Residential Land Use Regulations in New Hampshire: Causes and Consequences (Bartlett Center for Public Policy, October
2021)

H. Housing Solutions for New Hampshire (NHHFA, April 2019)

l. Fair Housing for Regional and Municipal Planning, A Guidebook for New Hampshire Planners (NHHFA, 2014)

J. Meeting the Workforce Housing Challenge, A Guidebook for New Hampshire Municipalities (NHHFA , 2010)

K. Other Regional Housing Effort (i.e., Keys to the Valley Initiative, North Country Housing Needs Analysis)

105|Page



Httachment 3



LAKES REGION PLANNING COMMISSION

BY-LAWS

including amendments of:
April 1982 | June 1998 | April 2008
October 2017 | June 2022 | March 2023
(tentative October 2023)

LEGAL BASIS FOR PLANNING COMMISSION

The legal basis for the Regional Planning Commission is contained in Chapter

36:45 of N.H. RSA.

The legal basis for the provision of technical assistance is contained in Chapter

The name of this Regional Planning Commission shall be:

“LAKES REGION PLANNING COMMISSION”

The purpose of the Lakes Region Planning Commission (LRPC) shall be to
promote the growth and prosperity of cities, towns, and villages in the Lakes
Region. This purpose will be advanced by promoting a spirit of regional
cooperation and decision making; providing technical assistance, on request, to
member communities; and otherwise serving as a regional planning commission
as set forth in RSA 36:45-58.

REPRESENTATION OF MEMBER MUNICIPALITTIES AND THE COUNTIES

Each municipality and county which shall become a member of the Lakes
Region Planning Commission shall be entitled to representation on said
Commission as provided by Chapter 36:46 of N.H. RSA.

Representation on the Commission shall be by: Commissioners, Alternate
Commissioners, and Associate Commissioners. Commissioners to the Lakes
Region Planning Commission shall be persons from municipalities comprising
Planning and Development Region #2 as delineated by Governor's Executive
Order, which have fully paid current assessments.

ARTICLE 1.
11
1.2
292 of N.H. RSA.
ARTICLE 2. NAME
2.1
ARTICLE 3. PURPOSE
3.1
ARTICLE 4.
4.1
4.2 Representation
4.3

LRPC By-Laws

Alternate Commissioners

Each member municipality or county may appoint an Alternate Commissioner,
who shall be authorized to act as Commissioner for the municipality in the

Page 1 of 10



absence of a Commissioner. In no case shall the total number of votes cast by a
municipality or county exceed the authorized number of Commissioners.

4.4 Associate Commissioners

Municipalities, which have not paid current assessments, or which are otherwise
ineligible for full voting membership but are nevertheless interested in Regional
Planning, may be Associate Members and appoint Associate Commissioners to
the Commission. The Lakes Region Planning Commission may also, by vote,
accept as Associate Commissioners any person who has an interest in Regional
Planning.

ARTICLE 5. VOTING PRIVILEGES

5.1 Commissioners shall have full voting privileges and shall be eligible to hold any
office in the Commission, except those for which remuneration is provided.
Alternate Commissioners may exercise the voting privileges of an absent
Commissioner from his municipality or county.

ARTICLE 6. FINANCES

6.1 City and Town Appropriations to the Commission

The Commission shall prepare an annual budget and shall determine on a
reasonable and equitable basis, in relation to the current state valuations and
population of municipalities, the amount to be paid by each member. The
amount to be paid by each member shall be certified to its municipal officers in
sufficient time to allow an appropriation to be made. The failure of a member to
appropriate and pay the amount determined by the Commission within a year of
the mailings of the assessment notice terminates its membership except as
provided under Section 4.4.

ARTICLE 7. COMMISSION STRUCTURE, DUTIES, AND RESPONSIBILITIES

71 Commission Structure

The Commission shall be comprised of appointed Commissioners from each
member municipality having voting rights as established by these By-Laws.
Commissioners shall not be reimbursed for their services, but may be
reimbursed for expenses incurred on behalf of the Commission upon approval
of the Executive Director.

7.2 Appointment of Commissioners

Each member municipality is entitled to two (2) representatives (three (3) for
populations over 10,000) plus an alternate who may act and vote as a
Commissioner in the absence of the Commissioner from their own municipality.
Commissioners are voluntary representatives nominated by the planning board
and appointed by the governing body of each member municipality as
established under RSA 36:46-III. The governing body shall provide written
notification of the appointment to the LRPC in a timely manner.

LRPC By-Laws Page 2 of 10



7.3 Commissioner Term of Office

Commissioners serve 4-year terms, but initial appointments are staggered terms
of 2 and 4 years (2, 3 and 4 years for municipalities that are entitled to three or
more representatives). A term is set upon the initial appointment of a vacant
position and carries through with that position (not the appointee) until such
time as the position becomes vacant for a period of six months after the term
expires, whereby a new term will be determined upon filling the vacancy.

7.4 Commissioner Vacancies

Vacancies shall be filled in the same manner as in Section 7.2. If the vacancy
being filled has a balance of term from a prior Commissioner, a new appointee
would assume the balance of that term.

7.5 Officers

The officers of the Commission shall include a Chair, a Vice Chait, a Treasurert,
and a Secretary. See also Article 8.

7.6 Duties

The Commission shall be the policy making body and, as such, shall establish
positions to be taken on all matters of regional importance, shall determine the
goals and objectives for the regional planning program, and shall review and
approve the annual work program and budget which shall provide the
operational framework for the Executive Board.

7.7 Standing Rules

The Commission may adopt Standing Rules for the purpose of establishing
employee policies, financial procedures, and other Commission policies. Such
Rules may be amended by a majority vote of the Executive Board at any regular
meeting.

7.8 Responsibilities

7.8.1  Commissioners are required to sign a Commitment to Serve and
a Conflict of Interest document which will be provided by the
LRPC upon receipt of the appointment notice. The Conflict of
Interest document shall be updated annually.

7.8.2  Commissioners are responsible for reviewing the Commissioner
Handbook which will be provided by the LRPC upon receipt of
the appointment notice. The Commissioner Handbook provides
various helpful information such as directories of LRPC staff,
Commissionets, Executive Board members, and officers.

7.8.3 Commissioners shall attend all regular meetings of the
Commission. In the event a Commissioner misses three (3)
consecutive regular meetings, the appointing authority shall be
notified in writing by the Executive Board.

LRPC By-Laws Page 3 of 10



ARTICLE 8.

EXECUTIVE BOARD STRUCTURE, DUTIES, AND RESPONSIBILITIES

8.1

8.2

8.3

LRPC By-Laws

Executive Board Structure

The Executive Board shall consist of the previously mentioned four (4) officers
(see Section 7.5), four (4) Area Commissioners, up to four (4) At Large
Commissioners, and two (2) alternates as elected by the Commission. The Area
Commissioners shall each reside within and represent one of the four (4)
geographic areas within the LRPC Region as shown in Fig. 1 (Area Map). The
four (4) At Large Commissioners shall provide the same geographic
representation insofar as possible.

Nomination of Executive Board

A Nominating Committee of up to five (5) Commissioners shall be appointed by
the Executive Board of the Commission at least one hundred eighty (180) days
in advance of the annual commission meeting. The Nominating Committee shall
consider the interest, ability, and residency of Commissioner members in serving
as members of the Executive Board. It shall also be the responsibility of the
Nominating Committee to nominate officers and alternates. The Executive
Board, officers, and alternates shall be nominated from the then current pool of
Commissioners. This information shall be used in preparing a ballot to be
submitted to the Commission. The Nominating Committee may nominate one
or more candidates for each office.

Election of Executive Board & Terms of Office

8.3.1

8.3.2

8.3.3

Officers

In accordance with RSA 36:48, the Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary,
and Treasurer shall be elected annually. Elections shall be held
every year in the same manner as the Executive Board members
defined in Section 8.3.2 below.

Area and At Large Commissioners

Area and At Large Commissioners of the Executive Board shall
be elected by the affirmative written ballots of a majority of the
Commissioners voting at the annual meeting every two (2) years.
Commissioners may vote for any qualified Commissioner,
whether or not nominated by the Nominating Committee. In
the event of a tie, the office will be determined by lot. The
results of the ballots shall be totaled and announced at said
meeting.

Executive Board Alternates

The Commission may also elect up to two (2) alternate members
to serve on the Executive Board who shall have all the rights
and responsibilities of an Executive Board member, including
attendance at Executive Board meetings, but who shall only
become a voting member when seated by the Chair to fill a

Page 4 of 10



8.4

8.5

LRPC By-Laws

8.3.4

vacancy in order to achieve a quorum. Alternates shall be elected
every two (2) years in conjunction with and in the same manner
as the Executive Board members defined in Section 8.3.2 above.

Executive Board Terms of Office

The term of office for Executive Board officers shall begin
immediately after the annual meeting at which they are declared
elected, and shall end immediately after the annual meeting of
the following year; officers shall hold office until their
successors have been elected and assume the duties of the
office.

The term of office for Area Commissioners, At ILarge
Commissioners, and Alternates shall begin immediately after the
annual meeting at which they are declared elected, and shall
continue for two (2) years ending immediately after the annual
meeting of the next election.

Executive Board Vacancies

The Executive Board Chair, or in the absence of the Executive Board Chair the
presiding member, may temporarily fill any vacant position on the Executive
Board occurring between elections. Temporary Executive Board members shall
hold office for the balance of the term for which they are appointed or until
their successors are elected at the next applicable annual meeting and assume the
duties of the office.

Duties of Executive Board

8.5.1

8.5.2

8.5.3

8.5.4

The Executive Board shall be responsible for the carrying out of
the annual work program within the budget as approved by the
Commission.

For this purpose, the Executive Board is authorized to take all
actions necessary to implement the work program including, but
not limited to, approving contracts in the name of the
Commission, and publicizing the position of the Commission
on matters of concern to local and regional planning
organizations.

The Chair shall call meetings of the Commission and the
Executive Board and shall preside over these meetings. The
Chair shall, except as otherwise provided, create and discharge
standing committees and special committees, and serve as a
non-voting ex-officio member of all committees — except in the
case of a tie when a vote shall be required. The Chair shall also
perform such other duties as are customary to the office.

The Vice Chair shall act as Chair in the absence or incapacity of
the Chair.

Page 5 of 10



ARTICLE 9.

9.1

9.2

9.3

LRPC By-Laws

8.5.5 The Secretary shall perform such duties as are customary to the
office, including responsible direction of such secretarial duties
as are assigned by these By-Laws, and shall put into effect the
directives of the Commission. The duties of the Recording
Secretary may be assigned to the Commission's staff by the
Commission. In the absence of the Secretary at any meeting, a
Secretary Pro Tem may be appointed by the Chair, at their
discretion, for that meeting.

8.5.6  The Treasurer shall perform such duties as are customary to the
office, including responsible direction of such financial duties as
are assigned by these By-Laws and shall put into effect the
directives of the Commission.

8.5.7 The Treasurer, Chair, and Vice Chair shall be bonded for the
faithful performance of their duties if and when so voted by the
Commission, in an amount to be determined and approved by
the Commission. The premiums for such bonds shall be paid
from Commission funds.

8.5.8 Itis the duty of Area Commissioners to convene area meetings
and bring issues of local concern to the attention of the
Executive Board, along with representing the interest of the
Commissioners in their area on any matters that may come to a
vote before the Executive Board. It is also the responsibility of
Area Commissioners to bring certain matters as requested by the
Executive Board to the attention of the Commissioners within
their area for consideration and recommendations.

MEETINGS

Commission Meetings

There shall be at least two (2) meetings per year of the entire Commission to be
held at a time and place as determined by the Executive Board, which shall best
serve the convenience of the greatest number of Commissioners. The annual
meeting shall be held in June.

Area Commission Meetings

There shall be at least one (1) meeting per year of the entire Commission to be
held in each of the four (4) areas.

Additional Meetings

Additional meetings may be called by the Chair or by a majority vote of the
Executive Board.

Page 6 of 10



9.4 Notice of Commission Meetings

Seven (7) days’ notice of all meetings of the Commission shall be provided by
the Secretary or FExecutive Director to all Commissioners, Alternate
Commissioners and Associate Commissioners except in an emergency when,
with the approval of a majority of the Executive Board, the Chair may call a
meeting on shorter notice. Distribution of a calendar of meetings shall meet the
requirement for a meeting notice if a reminder is distributed to the
Commissioners prior to each meeting.

9.5 Executive Board Meetings

Meetings of the Executive Board shall be called by the Chair as frequently as, in
his/her judgment, the accumulation of business to be transacted shall demand,
and at places and times to be determined by him/her.

9.6 Notice of Executive Board Meetings

Seven (7) days’ notice of all meetings of the Executive Board shall be provided
by the Secretary or Executive Director to all Executive Board members, except
in an emergency when the Chair may call a meeting on shorter notice.
Distribution of a calendar of meetings shall meet the requirement for a meeting
notice if a reminder is distributed to the Executive Board members prior to each
meeting.

9.7 Minutes of Meetings

Minutes of all meetings of the Commission and the Executive Board shall be
kept by the Secretary or a person designated by the Executive Board.

9.8 Quorum

Except in cases of emergency as defined in RSA 91-A: 2, III (b), a quorum of
the Commission or Executive Board (or any other committee or subcommittee)
shall be established by the physical presence of the percentage recognized below
at the location specified in the meeting notice.

9.8.1 Commission and Area Meetings

Commissioners from 51% of dues-paying municipalities that
have voting privileges, and that have appointed at least one (1)
Commissioner, shall constitute a quorum.

9.8.2  Executive Board Meetings

Fifty-one percent (51%) of the elected or Board appointed
members shall constitute a quorum.

9.9 Parliamentary Procedures

Roberts Rule of Order, as amended, shall govern in questions of parliamentary
procedure, except as herein otherwise provided.

LRPC By-Laws Page 7 of 10



9.10  Membership’s Electronic Participation in Meetings

9.10.1 The Commission and the Executive Board (and any other committee or
sub-committee that may be established) may, but is not required to,
allow one or more members of its body to participate in a meeting by
electronic or other means of communication for the benefit of the
public and the governing body, subject to the provisions of RSA 91-A:2,
II1.

9.10.2 To follow the provisions of RSA 91-A:2, III, for a Commissioner or
Executive Board member (or any other committee or sub-committee
member) to participate in a meeting electronically or otherwise, the
following must occur:

a. Each member participating electronically must articulate for the
minutes why they cannot physically attend the meeting (i.e. the
member cannot participate due to work, health, or personal
reasons).

b. Each member participating electronically must identify other people
present in the location from which the member is participating.

c. Each part of the meeting required to be open to the public must be
audible or otherwise discernable such that each member
participating electronically must be able to simultaneously hear and
speak to each other during the meeting as well as with those in
physical attendance at the meeting location.

d. All votes taken during such meeting shall be by roll call and
recorded in the minutes.

ARTICLE 10. STAFF
10.1 The staff of the Commission shall include an Executive Director.

10.2  The Executive Director shall annually prepare and submit to the Executive
Board a recommended schedule of personnel required to carry out the annual
work program. Such schedule to include — at a minimum — the number of
positions, job description, and salary range.

10.3  The Executive Director shall take action as required on the recommended
schedule for submission to the Commission as part of the annual work program

and budget.

10.4  Any contract previously approved by the Executive Board may be signed by the
Executive Director. If approval is given orally, it shall be confirmed in writing
within thirty (30) days.

10.5  The Executive Director shall prepare an annual written report which shall be
presented to the Commission at its first meeting following the Annual Meeting,
including an audited statement by a C.P.A. as of June 30 The Executive
Director shall also submit monthly financial reports to the Executive Board.

LRPC By-Laws Page 8 of 10



10.6  The Executive Director shall be responsible for filling the approved staff
positions in a manner consistent with the Commission’s personnel policies.

10.7  The Executive Director shall be in charge of the office and all employed or
contracted staff; shall conduct a regional planning program subject to the
approval of the Executive Board; shall be in charge of all general
correspondence of the Commission; shall prepare an annual budget, including
estimated revenues and expenditures for the fiscal year, to be reviewed by the
Executive Board prior to submission for approval by the Commission; and shall
keep accounts which shall at all times be open to inspection by the Officers and
Executive Board and which shall be submitted for annual auditing as prescribed
by the Executive Board. The Executive Director shall be bonded for the faithful
petformance of his/her duties and shall further undertake such other duties as
the Executive Board shall assign to him/her.

10.8  Staff members shall not have voting powers in Commission affairs, but are
expected to faithfully advise the Commission within the scope of their expertise.

ARTICLE 11. AMENDMENTS

11.1 By vote of the Executive Board or by a majority vote of the Commissioners, a
proposed amendment to the By-Laws shall first be submitted to the
Commissioners in preliminary form for consideration and comment for a period
of not less than thirty (30) days. Not later than thirty (30) days after this period,
the Executive Board shall submit to the Commission a report summarizing any
comments received by, and any recommendations of, the Executive Board along
with the proposed amendment in final form as a written ballot. Adoption of any
amendment shall requite a quorum and the affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3)
of the Commissioners present and voting.

ARTICLE 12. SAVING CLLAUSE

121 Any portion of these By-Laws found to be contrary to law shall not invalidate
other portions.

LRPC By-Laws Page 9 of 10



Fig. 1

Q

LRPC By-Laws Page 10 of
10



Httachment 4



08.11.2023 Lakes Region Planning Commission

FY24 PROPOSED BUDGET
FY22 Budget FY23 Budget FY24 Budget
Proposal Proposal Proposal
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4010 - Contract Income $ 546,470.00 $ 624,441.00 $ 694,886.00
4015 - Donations $ 2,500.00 $ 2,500.00 $ -
4020 - HHW Income
4021 - HHW Local Income $ 103,000.00 $ 103,000.00 $ 99,662.00
4022 - HHW State Income $ 16,000.00 $ 16,688.00 $ 15,486.00
Total 4020 - HHW Income $ 119,000.00 $ 119,688.00 $ 115,148.00
4045 - Interest & Dividends - Invest $ 4,000.00 $ 4,000.00 $ 6,163.00
4050 - Miscellaneous Income
4053 - Annual Meeting $ 6,000.00 $ 8,000.00 $ 6,000.00
Total 4050 - Miscellaneous Income $ 6,000.00 $ 8,000.00 $ 6,000.00
4060 - Local Appropriation Dues " $  128530.00 $  134,957.00 $  141,704.00
4070 - Sales Income
4071 - Land Use Book Sales $ 3,800.00 $ 1,300.00 $ 1,300.00
Total 4070 - Sales Income $ 3,800.00 $ 1,300.00 $ 1,300.00
4090 - Fund Balance $ 41,000.00
Total Income $ 810,300.00 $ 935,886.00 $ 965,201.00
Gross Profit $ 810,300.00 $ 935,886.00 $ 965,201.00
Expense
6030 - Custodian $ 4,160.00 $ 4,160.00 $ 4,420.00
6050 - Education & Training $ 1,000.00 $ 1,000.00 $ 1,000.00
6060 - Equipment Maintenance
6062 - Equip. Maint $ 1,650.00 $ 1,650.00 $ 7,800.00
6063 - Computer Maint. $ 1,500.00 $ 1,500.00 $ 1,000.00
Total 6060 - Equipment Maintenance $ 3,150.00 $ 3,150.00 $ 8,800.00
6061 - Equipment Purchases
6070 - HHW Expense
6072 - HHW Contractors $ 103,000.00 $ 103,000.00 $ 99,662.00
Total 6070 - HHW Expense $ 103,000.00 $ 103,000.00 $ 99,662.00
6080 - Insurance - Bonds & Business $ 3,000.00 $ 3,000.00 $ 3,450.00
7010 - Publishing/Memberships/Meetings
7011 - Annual Meeting $ 10,025.00 $ 7,500.00 $ 8,000.00
7012 - Memberships $ 6,000.00 $ 6,000.00 $ 5,000.00
7013 - Commissioner/Other Meetings $ 1,750.00 $ 1,750.00 $ 1,250.00
7015 - Publications, Subscriptions $ 500.00 $ 500.00 $ 500.00
Total 7010 - Publishing/Memberships/Meetings $ 18,275.00 $ 15,750.00 $ 14,750.00
7020 - Miscellaneous Expense $ 758.00 $ 500.00 $ 750.00
7030 - Office Improvements $ 500.00 $ 1,000.00 $ 1,000.00
7040 - Office Expense
7041 - Supplies $ 5,000.00 $ 5,700.00 $ 5,500.00
7042 - Software Renewal $ 8,500.00 $ 9,210.00 $ 10,630.00
Total 7040 - Office Expense $ 13,500.00 $ 14,910.00 $ 16,130.00
7043 - Copier Lease $ 5,000.00 $ 5,000.00 $ 5,000.00

Page 1 of 2 FY24 Proposed Budget



08.11.2023 Lakes Region Planning Commission

FY24 PROPOSED BUDGET
FY22 Budget FY23 Budget FY24 Budget
Proposal Proposal Proposal
7050 - Payroll Expenses
7051 - Salaries & Wages $ 452,118.00 $ 513,186.00 $ 526,833.00
7052 - Health Insurance $ 50,823.00 $ 90,539.00 $ 96,311.00
7053 - Life Insurance $ 300.00 $ 432.00 $ 600.00
7054 - Long Term Disability Insurance $ 1,200.00 $ 1,200.00 $ 837.00
7055 - Retirement Fund $ 42,755.00 $ 41,695.00 $ 45,636.00
7056 - Dental Insurance $ 4,676.00 $ 6,586.00 $ 5,013.00
7057 - Payroll Taxes $ 34,587.00 $ 39,259.00 $ 40,303.00
7058 - Workmans Comp. $ 800.00 $ 1,000.00 $ 1,000.00
7061 - Short Term Disability Insurance $ 2,040.00 $ 2,947.00 $ 1,400.00
Total 7050 - Payroll Expenses $ 590,299.00 $ 697,844.00 $ 717,933.00
7060 - Postage & Printing
6064 - Postage Fee $ 300.00 $ 300.00 $ 300.00
7062 - Postage $ 700.00 $ 1,000.00 $ 750.00

Total 7060 - Postage & Printing $ 1,000.00 $ 1,300.00 $ 1,050.00
7070 - Professional Services

7072 - Consultant $ 17,661.00 $ 42,661.00 $ 40,000.00

7075 - Payroll Service $ 300.00 $ 300.00 $ 720.00

Total 7070 - Professional Services $ 19,961.00 $ 42,961.00 $ 40,720.00

7071 - Audit $ 7,000.00 $ 7,000.00 $ 7,000.00

7074 - Legal $ 500.00 $ 500.00 $ 500.00

7080 - Rent $ 9,672.00 $ 10,680.00 $ 9,672.00

7090 - Traffic Equipment $ 4,125.00 $ - $ 8,000.00

8010 - Travel Expense $ 5,000.00 $ 5,000.00 $ 4,500.00
8050 - Utilities

6090 - Internet $ 2,400.00 $ 3,960.00 $ 4,060.00

8051 - Utilities-Propane $ 3,500.00 $ 4,000.00 $ 3,500.00

8052 - Telephone $ 7,500.00 $ 417100 $ 5,304.00

8053 - Electric $ 2,500.00 $ 2,500.00 $ 2,500.00

Total 8050 - Utilities $ 15,900.00 $ 14,631.00 $ 15,364.00

8060 - Vehicle O&M $ 4,500.00 $ 4,500.00 $ 5,500.00

Total Expense $ 810,300.00 $ 935,886.00 $ 965,201.00

Net Ordinary Income $ - $ - $ 0.00

Page 2 of 2 FY24 Proposed Budget



Htachment 5



Lakes Region Planning Commission
Municipal Appropriations

7/1/2024 - 6/30/2025 | Fiscal Year 25

Comparison
2021 2022
Total Eq. Total Eq. Total Eq.

2020 Valuation Valuation % FY25

Municipality Census ($000's) ($000's) Change Share
Alexandria 1,776 § 286,189 $ 347,714 21.50% $ 1,713
Andover 2406 § 362,290 $ 464,104 28.10% $ 2,308
Ashland 1938 § 376,092 $ 443,133 17.83% $ 1,982
Barnstead 4915  § 808,876 $ 1,045,071 29.20% $ 4,888
Belmont 7314 $ 1,110,890 $ 1,214,736 9.35% $ 6,670
Bridgewater 1,160 § 625,362 $ 638,155 2.05% $ 1,848
Bristol 3,244  § 758,831 § 924,526 21.84% $ 3,642
Center Harbor 1,040 § 717,206 $ 808,009 12.66% $ 2,075
Danbury 1250 § 172,106  $ 212,087 23.23% $ 1,148
Effingham 1,691 $ 263,885 $ 354,658 34.40% $ 1,673
Franklin 8,741 $ 845,724 $ 974,813 15.26% $ 7,125
Freedom 1689 § 876,376 $ 1,044,320 19.16% $ 2,895
Gilford 7699 $ 2,890,465 $ 3,688,226 27.60% $ 11,294
Gilmanton 3945 § 710,184 § 885,351 24.67% $ 4,006
Hebron 632 $ 410,082 $ 440,001 7.30% $ 1,171
Hill 1,017 § 120,498 §$ 152,227 26.33% $ 898
Holderness 2,004 $ 1,061,558 $ 1,300,923 22.55% $ 3,544
Laconia 16,871 $§ 3,242,400 $ 4,077,786 25.76% $ 17,647
Meredith 6,662 $ 3,283,198 $ 4,168,232 26.96% $ 11,505
Moultonborough 4918 § 4642282 $ 5,926,656 27.67% $ 13,547
New Hampton 2,377  § 454,054 § 520,507 14.64% $ 2,391
Northfield 4872 § 516,710 $ 610,442 18.14% $ 4,090
Ossipee 4372 $ 1042496 $ 1,321,173 26.73% $ 5,042
Plymouth 6,682 § 601,379 $ 793,804 32.00% $ 5,533
Sanbornton 3,026 § 737,225 $ 907,582 23.11% $ 3,478
Sandwich 1466 § 588,686 $ 732,798 24.48% $ 2,205
Tamworth 2812 § 556,147 $ 646,878 16.31% $ 2,883
Tilton 3,962 § 865,088 $ 891,375 3.04% $ 4,027
Tuftonboro 2467 $ 1,680,675 $ 2,045,803 21.73% $ 5,151
Wolfeboro 6,416 $ 3,130,675 $ 3,965,612 26.67% $ 10,994
Total: 119,364 $ 33,737,630 $ 41,546,703 23.15% $ 147,373
Total Appropriations for Municipalities: $ 147,373

Note: Dues are derived by calculating each municipality's share of the region's overall population and equalized property
valuation on the year of the decennial census. Population and equalized valuation are weighted equally by taking the
average of the two shares for each municipality. Dues are then increased annually according to the US Bureau of Labor

Statistics CPI index.




"0202Z shsuad wodj sainbiy 1un BuisnoH :821nos eleq

0007¥T $ [ 000°0¥T $ [299°G6 $ [ 29966 $ | %0°00T [ 968'T9 _ 1V.LOL
000y $ - $|]000Y $ (018 ‘yo-jj0y) spuadns als
000°'0¥T $ | 000°0¥T $|299°G6 $ [299'G6 $ 068'T9 | (10enuod 9211d paxid) 101 MHH
095'S $[o0r's $|¥69€ $[8¥8C $| %98E | 06E¢C oJoquoyn |
a8Y'y $]19cy $/086cC $|vOTE $| %ITE | 8261 uoli L
T8EY $]65cy $|016C $[2e0c  $ | wr0oe | €887 LoMmue |
967'C $|Zev'c $[899T $[82.T $| %welT | €07 yompues
EV6°'E $|ves'e  $[0292 $ 622 $| wviz | S69T uojuioques
8E6'9 $]av29  $[609%v $[108% $| %es8v | ¢86¢C 9adissO
1997 $]zesv  $|ooTe  $|oege  $ | wrkee | 900 PISUYLON
vELT $]8592 $[918T $[268T $| %06T | S/TT uoydweH MaN
€Zr'TT  $|90TTT  $[685Z $ 9062 $| we6L | 016 ybnoioquojnow
2€0TT  $[9z20T $|6282 $[S€9L $| %99l | zwlw yupaJssiN
G06'Cc  $ | Tvc'ec  $|088GT $ | ¥¥S9T $ | %0997 | G/2°0T eluode
22E'E $loce’e  $|locz $[66cC $| wice | st SS8uJap|oH
T9T'T $]62T1T $| T2 $ [ €08 $ | w180 667 IH
SOv'T $]99eT  $]¢c¢c6 $ [ €6 $ [ %860 09 uoigaH
£00°S $]898%v $|92c€ $[|S9r'c $ | %8r'E | ¢S1¢c uojuew|io
0v02T $/S0.TT $[866'L $|€ee8 $| %9e8 | SIT'S ployio
16LY $[v99Y $[/8Tc $|ocee  $ | weee | 290 wopaaid
ETr'6 $]15T6 $[€529 $[G1S9 $ | %rS9 | 9v0v uipjue.
1S2C $|v6Tc  $|66VT  $[295T $ | %/ST 0.6 wreybui3
¥6.°T $lvv.T  $|26TT $[TW2T S| wScT 1./ 10QBH Jojuad
G08'S $]ev9’s  $]9s8€  $[/10v $| weov | s6v'C |oisug
9022 $lvvtc  $|S9r'T  $[928T $| %eST 876 J1aremabplg
8078 $|v.T8  $|98SS  $ (618G $| %8S | vI9€ Juowjag
¥£9°C $]09s2  $[0SLT $[€28T $| %es8T | ¢e1T I13AOPUY
68T°C $[82Tt2  $|¥SrT  $[SIST  $ | %eST V6 elpuexaly

swun | swun Avredidiuniy
S | (esodsia) | (reud) | (remup) |Buisnon | Buisnon
oreys Gza4 | 2BUS SCAd |aseus vZAd|aleyS vZAd| % [ei0l

SNSuUad 020¢

(syun Buisnoy 101 Uo paseq)
GZAd ® 2 Ad uonerdoaddy s1sepn snopaezeH pjoyasnoH
uoISSIWWOD Buluue|d uolbay saxye]




Httachment O



abubys 03 1algns suonp0] pub ‘s31doy ‘sa3p

spJemy 1 Jauulq e Bunasin [enuuy
@agyLodo)

‘Aepijoy ay3 jo 3 Nsal e se pajnpaydsal aq Jou
[lIM 31ep SIy3 ‘pajnpayds uaaq aney sbunasw 9 asinbaJ ay1 alaypn

(uosialed uehy 13 9s0y NeN)
a1epdn a1sep pIoS
S9)IS playumolg uo Abisu3 sjgemausy
Buipun4 dnuea|) pue JUsWSSasSY Sp|aUMOIg MBN S,Dd¥]

(ulrequieyD uess)
uo13193||0) ele UoleHOdSuR |
pad/axiq buipnpul ‘ue|d uoneuodsues] |euoibay
a1epdn ue|d aAisuayaidwod) Ddy]

|esodoud 19bpng SZA4

(uoIsIAIQ 421 S3A HN ‘s191Q PaL)
$92IN0Say pue Buipun4 JIamas 1 Ja1ep

(UoLIBA BUIISLIYD) UOI1D8104d 191BAN 92IN0S
(ejndas Adde4]) BunLIp) JURID pue JusWdoeAdQ dIWOoU0d]

Hoday [enuuy DdY1 #ZAd | uonedo||y sana GZA4
(v3g ‘nesioq maipuy) arepdn HNIS9AU|
uolssnasig buisnoH aleys Jied |euolbay

10eu0) MHH MaN | jercaddy 196png y2A4
uoISINDY MeT-Ag
19bpng pasodold 172A4 | Jepudled yzAd
uolnejussald Upny £ZA4

(2A1EIUSY) YUIPAISIN

Ui 1UD1S aNIDIUS)

Buipue yainyd ® sjied NN ANd 8-0¢'¥
Wy JUOD |4 351 “DdY1 AV LL-6
Wiy JUod |4 351 DdY1 AV L1-6
(pawiijuod) eniodoy)
Kieigr] eniodoyd) @ |[eH S,||ouuny Wd 8-9
Wy JUOD |4 351 “DdY1 AV LL-6
(pawujuod)
[03sid INd 8-9
921440 UMOo]
Wiy Juod |4 351 DdY1 AV L1—6
202 dun( — Aienuer
Wy JUOD |4 351 “DdY1 AV LL-6
(powyuOD) elUODET
(Uno1 Js1eayl yum) wooy INd 8-9
BN 1S |eUBD ® J91E3Y] |EIUO|OD
Wy JUOD |4 351 “DdY1 AV LL-6
(Butpuad) ybnoisoquoynojn
Aieiqi 211gnd ybnoisoquoynojn Wd 8-9
Wy JUOD |4 351 “DdY1 AV LL-6
(PawIu0d) uoy|iL
wooy Auunwwo) qd uoyjip Wd 8-9
Wy JUOD |4 351 “DdY1 AV LL-6
€202 1dquiadaq - Anr

202 ‘o€ aunr - €20z ‘L Anr

JAepudjed bunya’n ZAd

Kepuo|n

Kepsaupa

Kepsaupap

AVANOWN

Kepsaupam

AVANOWN

Kepsaupap

Kepsaupam
AVANOW
Kepsaupam
AVANOW
Kepsaupam

AVANOW

Kepsaupam

dVANTTVO SNILIIN ¥ZAd

¥20e ‘v sunf

20e ‘2L {unf
AVA TVIHIONIIN

¥20e '8 Ae

¥20¢ ‘22 1ddV

¥20e ‘0L Judy

7202 ‘ST HOYVIN

7202 ‘€L Yaen

€202 ‘€l 4equisde@
€202 ‘L2 Y39NIAON

€202 '8 19qWiaAON
€20¢ ‘€2 ¥3901D00
€202 ‘L1 4390120

€202 'SC ¥39N3Ld3S

£202 '€l Joquisidas

ONILIIN
TVNANNY

pieog aAIINdaX3]

NOISSININOGD

pJeog aAIINdaX]

NOISSININOD

pleog aA1NJaX]

NOISSININOD

pJeog aAINd9X3

pleog aA1NJaX]

NOISSININOD

pleog aA1NJaX]

NOISSININOD

pJeog aAIINdaX]

NOISSININOD

pJeog aAIINdaX]

bioddisaxermmm | ye€S-6/2-€09
€52€0 HN "YupaJsin

€ 91INS 199.41S UIBN €01

uoissiwwo) buluueld uoibay sayeq



Httachment 7



Potential Benefits to EDA CEDS District Approval

Overview of CEDS

A CEDS should promote economic development and opportunity, foster effective transportation access,
enhance, and protect the environment, and balance resources through sound management of development.

Each CEDS is unique, reflecting the challenges and opportunities facing its region. It should contain four
main elements: analysis, vision, action plan, and evaluation. The analysis should assess the state of the
regional economy's strengths and weaknesses, and the opportunities and threats posed by external trends
and forces, as well as the availability of partners and resoutces for economic development. The community's
vision and goals, together with an appraisal of the region's competitive advantage, should set the strategic

direction for the action plan. The action plan should present priority programs and projects for
implementation. Finally, the CEDS should describe the process for evaluation and periodic update.

Advantages of the Region becoming an Economic Development District (EDD):
EDDs were set up by the federal government to assist areas that met some condition of economic distress.

1. Local governments in the district will receive an additional 10 percent bonus under EDA funded
programs (i.e. 60% federal participation instead of 50%).

2. Eliminate the need for counties to update their CEDS annually to qualify for EDA funding. The
EDD's CEDS annual update would suffice.

3. Provide CEDS for counties that do not have one.

4. The EDD is available to provide technical assistance to local governments on their economic
development activities, programs, and grant applications.

5. Regional economic development partnerships are enhanced.

6. Potential for additional federal funding: i.e., disaster preparedness and recovery, brownfield
mitigation, revolving loan fund, and Southern Crescent Commission.

The primary functions of the EDD are:
1. Preparation and maintenance of a Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS).
2. Assist in the implementation strategies identified in the CEDS.
3. Provide technical assistance to Economic Development Organizations throughout the region.
EDD Funding and technical assistance could also be used to:
* Maintain the economic development element in comprehensive plans.
* Coordinate between economic development councils.

= Cootdinate between local government economic development departments.

Page 1 of 3



= Encourage research and development and other identified targets.
® Annual short class on economic development.

=  Market the region and attract businesses.

* Improve the view of our educational system.

* Cultivate education and business partnerships.

* Administer a revolving loan program.

= Package economic development with infrastructure improvements.
* Provide or arrange for training programs.

= Serve as or help develop incubators.

What is the Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS)?

A CEDS is developed with the help of a representatively diverse steering committee, and contains the
following:

* An analysis of economic and community development problems and opportunities including
incorporation;

= of any relevant material or suggestions from other government sponsored or supported plans;

* Background and history of the economic development situation of the area covered, with a
discussion of the economy, geography, population, labor force, resources, and the environment;

® A discussion of community participation in the planning efforts;

= A section setting forth goals and objectives for taking advantage of the opportunities and solving the
economic development problems in the region;

= A plan of action, including broad project suggestions, to implement the goals and objectives set
forth in the strategy; and

* Performance measures that will be used to evaluate whether and to what extent goals and objectives
have been or are being met.

What are the elements of the CEDS?
1. Analysis: Where are we now?
The analysis should address the following:

= The state of the regional economy.

Page 2 of 3



= [External trends and forces.
= Partners for economic development.
® Resources for economic development.
And may include:
* Demographic, labor force and socioeconomic data.
® Geographic, climatic, environmental, and natural resource profiles.
* An infrastructure assessment.
® Identification of major sectors of the local economies past, present, and projected.
= Factors that directly and indirectly affect economic performance.
® Recognition of relationships between the region's economy and that of the state.

2. Vision: Where do we want to be?

e The vision statement, goals and objectives should respond to the analysis of the region's
development potential and problems.

e The vision statement should answer these questions:

e Where do we want to be? What are the goals? What are the areas in which the region can
build competitive advantages?

* How can the region's strengths and opportunities be maximized, and its weaknesses and
threats be mitigated?

3. Action Plan: How do we get there?

e The region's action plan describes activities and groups them into programs designed to achieve
the goal and objectives identified in the vision. The action plan outlines the region's economic
development programs, activities, and projects.

4. Evaluation Criteria
Performance measures should be identified to evaluate the progress of activities in achieving the vision

and goals. Preparation of an evaluation is the responsibility of the EDD under the guidance of the
CEDS steering committee.

Page 3 of 3



EDD Designation Package Checklist

[J EDA-approved CEDS for the region that complies with the EDA Comprehensive Economic
Development Strategy (CEDS) Content Guidelines.

Tab1
[J Background

0 Composition, location and description of the proposed District Organization. This should
include information on the geographic areas that will comprise the new (or modified)
Economic Development District (EDD).

0 General discussion of the area(s) proposed for designation. This should include the total
population and a description of the physical and socio-economic characteristics,
including unemployment, PCI and other relevant data.

[J  Economic Justification

0 Proof that at least one geographical area within the designated service boundaries
meets EDA’s regional distress criteria set out in 13 CFR 301.3(a).

0 Provide a table that shows the population, per capita income, per capita income as a
percentage of the state average, per capita income as a percentage of the national
average and 24-month unemployment rates for the communities in the proposed
district. The eligible area(s) within the proposed district should be highlighted.

0 Brief explanation of the economic justification for the proposed designation, boundary
modification, or renewal and how this action will advance EDA's mission in the region.

0 Describe the historic and economic connectivity within the region. More specifically,
describe the shared community development challenges and opportunities,
employment patterns, transportation networks and access issues, workforce
characteristics, workforce development strategies, business and industry clusters,
shared natural resource planning and other shared resources that affect economic
development.

Tab 2

[J Map(s) of the proposed EDD indicating the location within the State(s), counties, urban centers,
eligible areas, important transportation nodes and networks, and significant geographic features
that impact economic development. When possible, this map should illustrate the spatial
economic linkages between the counties included in the proposed District Organization.

Tab 3

[] Letter from the Chair of the District Organization requesting action. This letter must be written
on District Organization letterhead and address the reasons why the organization is requesting
action.

Tab 4

[J Letter(s) of concurrence from the State(s). This letter(s) must be written on state letterhead,
clearly demonstrate support from the state regarding the proposed action and include a list of
counties in the proposed EDD. The letter must clearly affirm state approval of the District
Organization’s CEDS.



Tab 5
[l County Resolutions or letters of support from at least a majority of the relevant geographic
areas for a designation or from proposed new geographic areas for a modification.

Tab 6
[1 Articles of Incorporation, By-Laws, Intergovernmental Agreement and/or Enabling Legislation for
the District Organization. Certificate of Good Standing if the proposed District is a non-profit.

Tab 7
[ List of participating jurisdictions and rationale for excluding non-participants contained within
the geographic boundary.

Tab 8

[J Governing Board and Executive Committee membership roster for the District Organization. The
District Organization must demonstrate that its governing body is broadly representative of the
principal economic interest of the region, including the private sector, public officials,
community leaders, representatives of workforce development boards, institutions of higher
education, minority and labor groups and private individuals.

Tab9
[J Roster of all District Organization staff involved in economic development or planning activities
that includes each staff member's educational background and professional experience.



	01 Agenda
	01a Title Page (Attachment 1)
	02 Draft Minutes of 06-26-23 Mtg (for approval)
	03 Bio (Andrew Dorsett)
	03a Title Page (Attachment 2)
	04 2023 RHNA Report (draft)
	04a Title Page (Attachment 3)
	05 By-Laws (August 2023 Proposed Amendments)
	05a Title Page (Attachment 4)
	06 FY24 Budget Proposal (draft)
	06a Title Page (Attachment 5)
	07 FY25 Municipal Membership & HHW Appropriations
	07 FY25 Municipal Membership Appropriation
	07 FY25 HHW Appropriations

	07a Title Page (Attachment 6)
	08 FY24 Meeting Calendar (draft)
	08a Title Page (Attachment 7)
	09 CEDS and EDA District Process

